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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL

36 CLINTON STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-5300 1-800-852-3345 Ext 5300

Fax:603-271-5395 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 18, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, New Hampshire Hospital, to
amend an existing sole source agreement with Concord Hospital, Inc. (Vendor # 177653), 250
Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301, to provide radiology services, by exercising a contract
renewal option by increasing the price limitation by $71,000 from $69,000 to $140,000 and
extending the completion date from June 30, 2020 to June 30, 2022, effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval. This original contract was approved by the Governor and Council on
May 2, 2018 (Item #26). 34% General Funds. 66% Other Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-94-940010-8750 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS; NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ACUTE
PSYCHIATRIC SERVICES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prop Svc
94057300 $7,500 $0 $7,500

2019
102-

500731 ■

Contracts for

Prog Svc
94057300 $30,000 $0 $30,000

2020
. 102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
94057300 $31,500 $0 $31,500

2021
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
94057300 $0 $35,500 $35,500

2022
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
94057300 $0 $35,500 $35,500

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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Total $69,000 $71,000 $140,000

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because Concord Hospital has the necessary skills and
demeanor to work successfully with behavior health clients. In addition, the Vendor is located in
close proximity to the Acute Psychiatric Facility allowing for quick access to services on a twenty-
four (24) hour, seven (7) days a week basis.

The purpose of this request is to allow the Department to continue providing radiology
services to New Hampshire Hospital patients. Concord Hospital will provide mobile radiology
services Including Interpretation of images for patients that are unable to leave the Acute
Psychiatiic Services facility. These services include x-ray and electrocardiogram as deemed
appropriate by the attending physician.

Approximately 400 Individuals will be seiyed from July 1. 2020 through June 30. 2022.

The original agreement, included language in Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3., that allows the
Department to renew the contract for up to four (4) years, subject to the continued availability of
funding, satisfactory performance of service, parties' written authorization and approval from the
Governor and Council. The Department is In agreement with renewing services for two (2) of the
four (4) years at this time.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures: • '

•  Turnaround time from when the x-rays or electrocardiogram is taken to the time
the results are delivered.

•  Responsiveness to request for services from the time a request is made to the
time the services are provided.

•  The thoroughness or the x-ray or electrocardiogram reports from Concord
Hospital.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department
may not be able to determine the severity of patients' conditions thus jeopardizing the wellbeihg
and recovery of patients while in the care of New Hampshire Hospital.

Area served: New Hampshire Hospital

Source of Funds: General Funds and Other Funds (Medicare, Medicaid and Third Party
Insurance).

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Heather M. Moquin

Chief Executive Officer



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Radiology Services

State of New Hampshire '
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Radiology Services Contract

This 1 Amendment to the Radiology Services contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") is by
and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Concord Hospital, Inc., (hereinafter referred to as 'Ihe
Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 250 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 2, 2018, (Item #26), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms arid
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Paragraph #3, the Contract may be amended' upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support.continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2022.

2. Form P-:37, General Provisions, Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

,  $140,000.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director. ^

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631. ' '

5. . Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Subsection 3.1., and replace it
In its entirety to read:

3.1. The Contractor will be reimbursed for services performed in accordance with Exhibit B-2,
Fee Schedule.

6. Modify Exhibit B-1 Fee Schedule and replace it In its entirety with Exhibit B-2 Fee Schedule.

ssConcord Hospital, Inc. Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

SS-2018-NHH-11-RADIO-01-A01 Page 1 of 3 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Radiology Services

All terms and conditions of the Contract not Inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and
effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written l>elow,

Date

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Sen/Ices

M Atf'-
Date Name; Heather M. Moquin

Title: Chief Executive Officer

Concord Hospital, Inc.

N^me: uy
Title; cJrO

Concxjrd Hos^aUnc. Amendment#!

SS-201S-NHH-11-RADIO-01-A01 Page2of3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Radiology Services

The preceding Amendment, having been .reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

5/28/20

Date Name:

Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date , Name:

Title:

Concord Hospital, Inc. Amendment#!

SS-201&.NHH-11-RADtO-01-A01 Page 3 of 3



Exhibit B-2 Fee Schedule

BILL ITEM

ID

ACTIVITY

TYPE COM COM - Description CRT

Mobile Contract

Level 3 Price

(Cerner Level 1

2020)

■ 1169926 Radiology 1169926 XR Abdomen KUB IVIew 74018 122.45

7816293 Radiology 7816293 XR Abdomen KUB 2 Views 74019 138.91

7816296 Radiology 7816296 XR Abdomen KUB'3 or More Views 74021 ' 148:41

1169922 Radiology 1169922 XR AC Joints Bilateral 73050 145.20

1169942 Radiology 1169942 XR Ankle Complete 3+ Views Left 73610 127.36

1169944 Radiology 1169944 XR Ankle Complete 3+ Views Right 73610 127.36

1170032 Radiology 1170032 XR Calcaneous Left 73650 117.32

1170034 Radiology 1170034 XR Calcaneous Right 73650 117.32

7522408 Radiology 7522408 XR Chest 1 View 71045 115.56

1170044 Radiology 1170044 XR Chest 2 Views w/ Obliques 71048 136.73

7522409 Radiology 7522409 XR Chest Decubitus Bilateral 71046 143.63

7523194 Radiology 7523194 XR Chest Decubitus Left 71045 123.12

7523197 Radiology 7523197 XR Chest Decubitus Right 71045 123.12

1170075 Radiology 1170075 XR Clavicle Left 73000 123.24

1170077 Radiology 1170077 XR Clavicle Right 73000 123.24

1170127 Radiology 1170127 XR Elbow Complete 3+ Views Left 73080 127.96

1170129 Radiology 1170129 XR Elbow Complete 3+ Views Right 73080 127.96

1170141 Radiology 1170141 XR Facial Bones 3+ Views 70150 131.59

7523416 Radiology 7523416 XR Femur 2 Views Left 73552 145.68

7523419 Radiology 7523419 XR Femur 2 Views Right 73552 145.68

1170151 Radiology 1170151 XR Finger(s) 2+ Views Left 73140 122.09

1170153 Radiology 1170153 XR Finger(s) 2+ Views Right 73140 122.09

1170191 Radiology 1170191 XR Foot Complete 3+Views Left 73630 127.96

1170193 Radiology 1170193 XR Foot Complete 3+ Views Right 73630 127.96

1170197 Radiology 1170197 XR Forearm 2 Views Left 73090 127.96

1170199 Radiology 1170199 XR Forearm 2 Views Right 73090 127.96

1170221 Radiology 1170221 XR Hand Complete 3+ Views Left 73130 122.09

1170223 Radiology 1170223 XR Hand Complete 3+,Views Right. 73130 122.09

1170233 Radiology 1170233 XR Hip 2-3 Views Left " 73502 118.77

1170235 Radiology 1170235 XR Hip 2-3 Views Right 73502 118.77

1170245 Radiology 1170245 XR Humerus Left 73060 136.19

1170247. Radiology 1170247, XR Humerus Right 73060 136.19

1170263 Radiology 1170263 XR Knee 1 or 2 Views Left 73560 122.09

1170265 Radiology 1170265 XR Knee 1 or 2 Views Right 73560 122.09

1170269 Radiology 1170269 XR Knee 3 Views Left 73562 133.89

1170271 Radiology 1170271 XR'Knee 3 Views Right 73562 133.89

1170287 Radiology 1170287 XR Knee Complete 4+ Views Left 73564 _ 136.19

1170289 Radiology 1170289 XR Knee Complete 4+ Views Right 73564 ■  136.19

1170301 Radiology 1170301 XR Mandible Complete 4+Views 70110 137.21

1170329 Radiology 1170329 XR Nasal Bones 3+Views 70160 "119.67

1170331 Radiology 1170331 XR Neck Soft Tissue 70360 127.96

1170339 Radiology 1170339 XR Orbits >4 Views 70200 127.96

7523295 Radiology 7523295 XR Patella Left 73560 123.24

Concord Hospital, Inc.

SS-2018-NHH-03-PHYSI-01-A01 Exhibit B-2 Fee Schedule

Contractor Initials^

Date

C5.



Exhibit B-2 Fee Schedule

, Mobile Contract

Level 3 Price

BILL ITEM ACTIVITY {Cerner Level 1

ID TYPE COM COM - Description CPT 2020)

7523298 Radiology 7523298 XR Patella Right 73560 123.24

1170351 Radiology 1170351 XR Pelvis 1 or 2 Views 72170 121.19

7523301 Radiology 7523301 XR Pelvis w 1 View Hip Left 73501 • 136.07

7523304 Radiology 7523304 XR Pelvis w 1 View Hip Right 73501 136.07

1170379 Radiology 1170379 XR Ribs Left w/ PA Chest 71101 163.23

1170381 Radiology 1170381 XR Ribs Right w/ PA Chest 71101 163.23

1170377 Radiology 1170377 XR Ribs w/ PA Chest Bilateral 71111 176.24

1170387 Radiology 1170387 XR Sacroiliac Joints 3+ Views 72202 136.73

1170391 Radiology 1170391 XR Sacrum/Coccyx 2+ Views 72220 137,70

1170401 Radiology 1170401 XR Scapula Left 73010 127.96

1170403 Radiology 1170403 XR Scapula Right 73010 127.96

1170409 Radiology 1170409 XR Shoulder 1 View Left 73020 130.44

1170411 Radiology 1170411 XR Shoulder 1 View Right 73020 130.44

1170434 , Radiology 1170434 XR Sinuses 3+ Views 70220 141.57

1170436 Radiology 1170436 XRSkulll-3 Views 70250 121.07

1170438 Radiology 1170438 XR Skull 4+ Views 70260 127.84

1170446 Radiology 1170446 XR Spine Cervical 1 View 72020 117.07

1170452 Radiology 1170452 XR Spine Cervical 2 or 3 Views 72040 127.96

1170454 Radiology 1170454 XR Spine Cervical 4 or 5 Views 72050, 144.42

1170461 Radiology 1170461 XR Spine Cervical 6+ Views 72052 144.42

1170448 Radiology 1170448 XR Spine Lumbarsacral 1 View 72020 .  123.24

1170470 Radiology 1170470 XR Spine Lumbosacral 2-3 Views 72100 139.63

1170476. Radiology 1170476 XR Spine Lumbosacral 4-5 Views 72110 153.23

1170450 Radiology 1170450 XR Spine Thoracicl View 72020 , 123.24

1170484 Radiology 1170484 XR Spine Thoracic 2 Views 72070 150.83

1170486 Radiology 1170486 XR Spine Thoracic 3 Views 72072 161.96

1170496 Radiology 1170496 XR Sternum 2+ Views 71120 130.44

1170516 Radiology 1170516 XR Tibia/Fibula Left 73590 136.19

1170518 Radiology 1170518 XR Tibia/Fibula Right 73590 148.95

1170502 Radiology 1170502 XR TMJ Open and Closed Bilateral 70330 131.04

1170520 Radiology 1170520 XR Toe{s) 2+ Views Left 73660 127.96

1170522 Radiology 1170522 XR Toe(s) 2+Views Right 73660 127.96

1170612 Radiology 1170612 XR Wrist Complete 3+ Views Left 73110 122.09

1170614 Radiology 1170614 XR Wrist Conriplete 3+ Views Right 73110 122.09

Concord Hospital, Inc.

SS-2018-NHH-03-PHYSI-01-A01 Exhibit B-2 Fee Schedule

Contractor Initials

Date <r W



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Secretary ofStatc of the State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on January 29, 1985. 1 further certify

that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofTice have been received and is in good standing as far as this

ofTlce is cohcerncd.

Business ID; 74948

Certificate Number: 0004893926

y

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 13th day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE

I, William Chapman, Secretatv of Concord Hospital, Inc. do hereby certify;

1) I maintain and have custody of and am familiar with the seal and minute books of
the corporation;

2) I am authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such books and
to affix such seal to such certificates;

3) The following is a true and complete copy of the resolution adopted by the board of
trustees of the corporation at a meeting of that board on March 21, 2005 which
meeting was held in accordance with the law of the state of Incorporation and the
bylaws of the corporation:

The motion was made, seconded and the Board unanimously voted that the powers
and duties of the President shall include the execution ofall contracts and other
legal documents on behalf of the corporation, unless some other person is
specifically so designated by the Board, by law, or pursuant to the administrative
policy addressing contract and expenditure approval levels.

4) the foregoing resolution is in full force and effect, unamended, as of the date
hereof; and

5) the following persons lawfully occupy the offices.indicated below:

.V Robei^t P.feteigmeyer, President
Scott W. Sloane, Chief Financial Officer

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Secretary of the
Corporation this X clay of, , 20 .

(Corporate seal)
Secretary

State of:

County of: .

On this, the_ffday of \M^ ° notary public, the
undersigned officer, personally nppaared li/in'CU4/l , known
to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the
within instrument, and acknowledged that he/she executed the same for the

contamed. ,

In uji^^^fi^r^0'/^hereunto set my official seal
^  ̂ J . . . I
S  - COMMISSION S n
= : EXPIRES = = Notary Public

JULr27, Uj' ~ r
(Be'^) 2023 ^

Commission expires:.



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

. 01/0^2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

MARSH USA, INC.

99 HIGH STREET
BOSTON, MA 02110

Attn: Boston.certre<{uest@Mar5h.com

CN107277064-CHS-9ener-20-21'

CONTACT
NAME:

PHONE FAX
fATC.No.Extl: (A/C.No):
E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURERfSI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A Granite Shield Insurance Exchanae

INSURED

CAPITAL REGION HEALTHCARE CORPORATION

& CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC.
ATTN: KATHY LAMONTAGNE, ADMINISTRATION
250 PLEASANT STREET
CONCORD. NH 03301

INSURERS

INSURERC

INSURERS

INSURER e

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: NYC-01CI805475-01 REVISION NUMBER: 3

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

■  |A00L|SU6R| I POLICY EFF
TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WVD1 POLICY NUMBER IMM/DD/YYYY> POLICY exp

(MM/DD/YYYY> LIMITS
INSR
LTR

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAJMS-MAOE OCCUR

GSIE-PRIM-2020-101 01/01/2020 01/01/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO REMTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrencel

MED EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

POLICY n Q LOC
OTHER: '

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

2,000,000

12,000.000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa accldenti '

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per acddenl)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
IPer aecidenil

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANVPROPRJETOR/PARTNEfV^eCUTIVE
OFFICERIMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Y/N

H

PER
STATUTE

6th-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

Professional Liability GSiE-PRIM-2020-101 01/01/2020 01/01/2021 SEE ABOVE

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required]
GENERAL LiABiLiTY AND PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY SHARE A COMBINED LIMIT OF 2.000.000/12.COO,000. HOSPITAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY RETRO ACTIVE DATE 06/24/1985, EACH (XCURRENCE
AND AGGREGATE LIMITS ARE SHARED AMONGST THE GRANITE SHIELD EXCHANGE HOSPITALS.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

STATE OF NH DEPT OF HEALTH

& HUMAN SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET

CONCORD, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

of Marsh USA Inci

FllrahAlh .<?faplsfr.n ' 't Tr''

ACORD 25(2016/03)
©1988-2016ACORDCORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



yACORD'

CAPIREG-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

ASTOBERT

DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

5/28/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poltcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL.INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer riqhts to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsemont(s).

PRODUCER License # 1780862
HUB International New England
100 Central Street
Suite 201
Holliston, MA 01746

CONTACT Rita Durgin
PHONE FAX
(A/C.No. Ext): (A/C. No):

rlta.durgin@hubinternational.com

INSURER(S1 AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICll

INSURER A Citizens insurance Comoanv of America 31534

INSURED

Capital Region Healthcare Corporation
250 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

INSURER B

INSURERC

INAIIRFR D

INSURERS

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

JJB. TYPE OF INSURANCE
AOOL
INSD

SU8R
VWD POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
<MM/OD/YYYYl

POLICY EXP
IMM/DD/YVYY^ LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE | | OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
-EREMISE^EA-Qccuaeocfl)-

MEO EXP (Any one oefson)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY LOC

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS ■ COMP/OP AGO

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
fEa accidanlV

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

aIj^s only

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

AOTO

BODILY INJURY (Per pefsoni

BODILY INJURY (Per accklemi

PROPERTY pAi
fPer ardent)

MAGE

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

If yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

I t le

□
WBND117735 11/23/2019 11/23/2020

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

N/A
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE ■ EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT
1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Addlllonal Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required)

CERirFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) ® 1988*2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are-registered marks of ACORD



Concord Hospital Mission Statement

Concord Hospital is a charitable organization
which exists to meet the health needs of individuals

within the communities it serves.

It if the eslobNfhcd polic/ of Concord Hospltol T« provide fcrvieef on the sole bosls of the medical necessity
of such services as determined by the medkal stoff without reference to race, color, ethnicity, ruttonal origin,

sexual oricntotion, marital status, rcSgion, oge, gender, disability, or inobility to poy for such services.

ApprowO Or tawO of Trunact 10-21.02: 6wfflnwdbraaardll.2).01.ll-IS-04.Il-2109.II-2(Mt,Il.t047, IVI7-0e, lt-ie-09, lO-IS-tO 0-19-tt 9-24-12. 0-21-IS 9.22-14 O-IO-iS
9-26-l*.9-2S-t7.9-24-lS,9-23-19 -
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Concord Hospital, Inc.
and Subsidiaries

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

and Additional Information

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018
With Independent Auditors' Report ~
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Trustees

Concord Hospital, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Concord Hospital, Inc. and
Subsidiaries (the System), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of September 30,2019 and 2018,
the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors'Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no Such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.



The Board of Trustees

Concord Hospital, Inc.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, In all material respects, •
the financial position of the System as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets and Its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed In Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, In 2019, the System adopted Financial
Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Update 2016-14, Not-for-profit Entities (Topic
958) - Presentation ofFinancial Statements of Nnt-for-Profit Entities, applied the guidance retrospectively
to all periods presented. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

LlC

Manchester, New Hampshire
December 10, 2019
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

September 30, 2019 and 2018

ASSETS

(In thousands)

2019 2018

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $  6,404 $  4,691

Short-tenn investments .  23,228 30,553

Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts
of $14,635 in 2019 and $15,037 in 2018 68,614 70,261

Due from affiliates 492 659

Supplies 2,396 2,079

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 6.662 5.262

Total current assets 107,796 113,505

Assets whose use is limited or restricted:

Board designated 284,668 297,243

Funds held by trustee for workers' compensation
reserves, self-insurance escrows and construction funds 38,141 55,978

Doiior-restricted funds and restricted grants 39.656 . .. 40.431

Total assets whose use is limited of restricted 362,465 393,652

Other noncurrent assets;

Due from affiliates, net of current portion 708 768

Other assets ,. , 18.340 13.344

Total other noncurrent assets 19,048 14,112

Property and equipment:
Land and land improvements 6,338 6,942

Buildings 194,301 195,301

Equipment 244,834 292,694

Construction in progress 38.734 7.044

484,207 501,981

Less accumulated depreciation (302.519) (332:923)

Net property and equipment 181.688 169.058

S 670.997 $ 690.327



LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

(In thousands)

2019 2018

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 34,354 S 36,190
Accrued compensation and related expenses 28,174 26,646
Accrual for estimated third-party payer settlements 34,569 35,378
Current portion of long-temi debt 7,385 9.061

Total current liabilities 104,482 107,275

Long-term debt, net of current portion 120,713 128,463

Accrued pension and other long-tenn liabilities 74.718 48.302

Total liabilities 299,913 284,040

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions ^ 333,022 368,060
With donor restrictions - 38.062 38.227

Total net assets 371,084 406,287

S 670.997 S 690.327

See accompanying notes.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018
(In thousands)

2019 2018

Revenue and other support without donor restrictions:
Net patient service revenue, net of

contractual allowances and discounts 5510,098 $492,647

Provision for doubtful accounts f23.826^ (29.329)

Net patient service revenue less
provision for doubtful accounts 486,272 463,318

Other revenue 21,887 20,496

Disproportionate share revenue 19,215 14,327

Net assets released from restrictions for operations 1.453 2.112

Total revenue and other support without donor restrictions 528.827 500,253

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages 250,359 233,356

Employee benefits 61,887 52,130

Supplies and other 106,095 98,713

Purchased services 32.865 43,352

Professional fees 7,681 6,531

Depreciation and amortization 26,150 ■  27,574

Medicaid enhancement tax 22,442 20,975

Interest expense 4.729 4.873

Total operating expenses 512.208 487.504

Income from operations 16,619 12,749

Nonoperating income:
Gifts and bequests without donor restrictions 304 317

Investment (loss) income and other (4,906) 12,878

Net periodic benefits cost, other than service cost a.626) (2.880)

Total nonoperating (loss) income ■  (7,228) 10.315

Excess of revenues and nonoperating income over expenses 5  9.391 .5 23.064

See accompanying notes.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

See accompanying notes'.

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018
(In thousands)

-■

2019 2018

Net assets without donor restrictions:
Excess of revenues and nonoperating income over expenses $  9,391 $ 23,064
Net unrealized gains on investments 4,979 1,805
Net transfers from (to) affiliates 388 (35)
Net assets released from restrictions used for .

purchases of property and equipment 188 479

Pension adjustment f49.984f 7.599

(Decrease) increase in net assets without donor restrictions (35,038) .  32,912

Net assets with donor restrictions:
Contributions and pledges with donor restrictions 1,912 1,554
Net investment (loss) return (103) 1,236
Contributions to affliates and other community organizations (186) (222)
Unrealized (losses) gains on trusts administered by others (147) 48

Net assets released from restrictions for operations (1,453) (2,112)
Net assets released from restrictions used for

purchases of property and equipment (188) (479)

(Decrease) increase in net assets with donor restrictions (165) 25

(Decrease) increase in net assets (35,203) 32,937

Net assets, beginning of year 406.287 373.350

Net assets, end of year .'i;371.084

6  .



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018
(in thousands)

Supplemental disclosure:
At September 30, 2019, amounts totaling $6,990 related

to the purchase of property and equipment were
included in accounts payable and accrued expenses.

See accompanying notes.

2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities:
(Decrease) increase in net assets $ (35,203) $  32,937

Adjustments to reconcile (decrease) increase in net
assets to net cash provided by operating activities:

Contributions and pledges with donor restrictions (1,912) (1.554)
Depreciation and amortization 26,150 27,574

Net realized and unrealized losses (gains) on investments 5,483 (12,762)

Bond premium and issuance cost amortization (368) (317)

Provision for doubtful accounts 23,826 29,329

Equity in earnings of affiliates, net (7,345) (5,539)

Loss (gain) on disposal of property and equipment 35 .  (84)
Pension adjustment 49,984 (7,599)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (22,179) (48,246)

Supplies, prepaid expenses and other current assets (1.717) 291

Other assets (4,087) 2,495

Due from affiliates 227 430

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (8,826) 7,497

Accrued compensation and related expenses 1,528 1,066

Accrual for estimated third-party payor settlements • (809) 7,996

Accrued pension and other long-tenn liabilities (23.568) (4.635)

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,219 28,879

Cash flows from investing activities:
Increase in property and equipment, net (31,698) (30,456)

Purchases of investments (43,333) (87,949)

Proceeds from sales of investments ■  76,304 . 31,793

Equity distributions from affiliates 6.309 4.752

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 7,582 (81,860)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments on long-term debt (9,058) (8,816)

Proceeds from issuance of long-tenn debt - .  62,004

'Bond issuance costs - (670)

Change in short-tenn notes payable - (15)
Contributions and pledges with donor restrictions 1.970 1.370

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities (7.088) 53.873

Net increase in cash'and cash equivalents 1,713 892

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4.691 3.799 .

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $  6.404 .$ 4.691



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

OrQcinization

Concord Hospital, Inc., (the Hospital) located in Concord, New Hampshire, is a not-for-profit acute care
hospital. The Hospital provides inpatient, outpatient, emergency care and physician services for
residents within its geographic region. Admitting physicians are primarily practitioners in the local area.
The Hospital is controlled by Capital Region Health Care Corporation (GRHC).

In 1985, the then.Concord Hospital underwent a corporate reorganization in which it was renamed and
became CRHC. At the same time, the Hospital was fornied as a new entity. All assets and liabilities of
the former hospital, now CRHC, with the exception of its endowments and restricted funds, were

conveyed to the new entity. The endowments were held by CRHC for the benefit of the Hospital, which
is the true party in interest. Effective October I, 1999, CRHC transferred these funds to the Hospital.

In March 2009, the Hospital created The Concord Hospital Trust (the Trust), a separately incorporated,
not-for-profit organization to serve as the Hospital's philanthropic arm. In establishing the Trust, the
Hospital transferred philanthropic funds with donor restrictions, including board designated funds,
endowments, indigent care funds and specific purpose funds, to the newly fonned organization together
with the stewardship responsibility to direct monies available to support the Hospital's charitable mission
and reflect the specific intentions of the donors who made these gifts. Concord Hospital and the Trust
constitute the Obligated Group at September 30, 2019 and 2018 to certain debt described in Note 6.

Subsidiaries of the Hospital include;

Caoiial Reaion Health Care Development Corporadon (CRHCDC) is a not-for-profit real estate
•corporation that owns and operates medical office buildings and other properties.

Capital Region Health Ventures Corporation (CRHVC) is a not-for-profit corporation that engages in
health care delivery partnerships and joint ventures. It operates ambulatory surgery and diagnostic
facilities independently and in cooperation with other entities.

NH Cares A CO. LLC CNMC) is a single member limited liability company that engages in providing
medical services to Medicare beneficiaries as ah accountable care organization. NHC has a perpetual
life and is subject to tennination in certain events.

The Hospital, its subsidiaries and the Trust are collectively referred to as the System. The consolidated
financial statements include the accounts of the Hospital, the Trust, CRHCDC, CRHVC and NHC. All
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use ofEstimates

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and .liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018 .
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued!

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which subject the Hospital to credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents,
accounts receivable and investments. The risk with respect to cash equivalents is minimized by the
Hospital's policy of investing in financial instruments with short-tenn maturities issued by highly rated
financial institutions. The Hospital's accounts receivable are primarily due from third-party payors and

amounts are presented net of expected contractual allowances and. uncollectible amounts, including
estimated uncollectible amounts from uninsured patients. The Hospital's invesunent portfolio consists

•  of diversified investments, which are subject to market risk. The Hospital's investment in one fund, the
.Vanguard Institutional Index Fund, exceeded 10% of total Hospital investments as of September 30,
. 2019 and 2018.

Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include money market funds with original maturities of three months or less,
excluding assets whose use is limited or restricted.

The Hospital maintains its cash'in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured
limits. The Hospital has not experienced any losses on such accounts.

Supplies . ■ •

Supplies are carried at the lower of cost, detennined on a weighted-average method, or net realizable
value. I

Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Assets whose use is limited or restricted include assets held by trustees for workers' compensation
reserves, self-insurance escrows, construction funds, designated assets set aside by the Board ofTrustees
(over which the Board retains control and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other purposes),
and donor-restricted investments.

Investments and Investment Income

Investments are carried at fair value in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. -Investment
income (including realized gains and losses on investments, interest and dividends) is included in the
excess of revenues and nonoperating income over expenses unless the income is restricted by donor or
law, in which case it is reported as an increase or decrease in net assets with donor restrictions. Gains
and losses on investments are computed on a specific identification basis. Unrealized gains and losses
on investments are excluded from the excess of revenues and nonoperating income over expenses unless
the investments are classified as trading securities or losses are considered other-than-temporary.
Periodically, management reviews investments for which the market value has fallen significantly below
cost and recognizes impainnent losses where they believe the declines are other-than-temporary.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued")

Beneficial Interest in Perpetual Trusts

The System has an irrevocable right to receive income earned on certain trust assets established for its
benefit. Distributions received by the System are without donor restrictions. The System's interest in
the fair value of the trust assets is included in assets whose use is limited or restricted and as net assets

with donor restrictions. Changes in the fair value of beneficial trust assets are reported as increases or

decreases to net assets with donor restrictions.

Investment Policies

The System's investment policies provide guidance for the prudent and skillful management of invested
assets with the objective of preserving capital and maximizing returns. The invested assets include
endowment, specific purpose and board designated funds.

Endowment funds are identified as perpetual in nature, intended to provide support for current or future
operations and other purposes identified by the donor. These funds are managed with disciplined longer-
tenn investment objectives and strategies designed to accommodate relevant, reasonable, or probable
events.

Specific purpose funds are temporary in nature, restricted as to time or purpose as identified by the donor
or grantor. These funds have various intennediate/Iong-term time horizons associated with specific
identified spending objectives.

Board designated funds have various intermediate/long-term time horizons associated with specific
spending objectives as detennined by the Board of Trustees.

Management of these assets is designed to increase, with minimum risk, the inflation adjusted principal
and income of the endowment funds over the long tenn. The System targets a diversified asset allocation
that places emphasis on achieving its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints.

Snencline Policy for Approoriation of Assets for Expenditure

In accordance with the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), the System
considers the following factors in making a detennination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted
endowment funds: (a) the duration and preser\'ation of the fund; (b) the purpose of the organization and
the donor-restricted endowment fund; (c) general economic conditions; (d) the possible effect of
inflation and deflation; (e) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;
(f) other resources of the organization; and (g) the investment policies of the organization.

Spending policies may be adopted by the System, from time to time, to provide a stream of funding for
the support of key programs. The spending policies are structured in a manner to ensure that the
purchasing power of the assets is maintained while providing the desired level of annual funding to the
programs. The System has a current spending policy on various fnnds currently equivalent to 5% of
twelve-quarter moving average of the funds' total market value.

10



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Accounts Receivable and the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts. In evaluating the collectibiiity
of accounts receivable, the System analyzes its past history and identifies trends for each of its major
payor sources of revenue to estimate the appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts and provision for
doubtful accounts. Management regularly reviews data about these major payor sources of revenue in
evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for doubtful accounts. For receivables associated with
services provided to patients who have third-party coverage, the System analyzes contractually due
amounts and provides an allowance for doubtful accounts and a provision for doubtful accounts, if
necessary (for example, for expected uncollectible deductibles and copayments on accounts for which
the third-party payor has not yet paid, or for payors who are known to be having financial difficulties
that make the realization of amounts due unlikely). For receivables associated with self-pay patients
(which includes both patients without insurance and patients with deductible and copayment balances
due for which third-party coverage exists for part of the bill), the System records a provision for doubtful
accounts in the period of service on the basis of its past experience, which indicates that mariy patients
are unable or unwilling to pay the portion of their bill for which they are financially responsible. The
difference between the standard rates (or the discounted rates if negotiated) and the amounts actually
collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted is charged off against the allowance
for doubtful accounts.

I
\

The System's allowance for doubtful accounts for self-pay patients represented 68% and 82% of self-
pay accounts receivable at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The total provision for the
allowance for doubtful accounts was $23,826 and $29,329 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and"
2018, respectively. The System also provides charity care to patients, which is not recorded as revenue.
The System's self-pay bad debt writeoffs decreased $4,246, from $27,430 in 2018 to $23,184 in 2019.
The decrease in bad debt writeoffs between 2018 and 2019 was primarily a result of certain shifts in
payor mix.

Proi}ertit' and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost at time of purchase, or at fair value at time of donation for assets
contributed, less any reductions in carrying value for impaimient and less accumulated depreciation.
The System's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major improvements and charge maintenance and
repairs currently for expenditures which do not extend the lives of the related assets. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method in a manner intended to amortize the cost of the related assets
over their estimated useful lives. For the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, depreciation
expense was $26,150 and $27,574, respectively.

The System has also capitalized certain costs associated with property and equipment not yet in service.
Construction in progress includes amounts incurred related to major construction projects, other
renovations, and other capital equipment purchased but not yet placed in service. During 2019 and 2018,
the Hospital capitalized $652 and $ 167, respectively, of interest expense relating to various construction
projects. At September 30, 2019, the Hospital has outstanding construction commitments totaling

. approximately $18.8 million for a new medical office building. Construction commenced in the summer
of 2018 and is anticipated to be completed in June 2020.

11



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accountine Policies (Continued)

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings or equipment are reported as support without donor
restrictions, and are excluded from the excess of revenues and nonoperating income over expenses,
unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets
with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash or other assets that
must be used to acquire long-lived assets, are reported as support with donor restrictions. Absent explicit
donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained, expirations of donor
restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.

Federal Grant Revenue and Expenditures

Revenues and expenses under federal grant progratns are recognized as the grant expenditures are
incurred.

Bond Issuance Cosls/Ori2inal Issue Discount or Premium

Bond issuance costs incurred to obtain financing for construction and renovation projects and the original
issue discount or premium are amortized to interest expense using the straight-line method, which
approximates the effective interest method, over the life of the respective bonds. The original issue
discount or premium and bond issuance costs are presented as a component of bonds payable.

Charity Care

The System provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without
charge or at amounts less than its established rates (Note 1 1). Because the System does not pursue
collection of amounts detennined to qualify ascharity care, they are not reported as revenue. The System
uses an industry standard approach in calculating the costs associated with providing charity care. Funds
received from gifts and grants to subsidize charity services provided for the years ended September 30,
2019 and 2018 were approximately $88 and $452, respectively.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Gifts are reported as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of
donated assets. Donated investments, supplies and equipment are reported at fair value at the date of
receipt. Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date of
receipt of the promise. When a donor restriction expires (when a stipulated time restriction ends or
purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets
without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of operations as either net assets released from
restrictions for operations (for noncapital related items) or as net assets released from restrictions used
for purchases of property and equipment (capital related items). Some net assets with donor restrictions

have been restricted by donors to be maintained by the System in perpetuity.

Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported
as contributions without donor restrictions in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

12



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Net Patient Sen'ice Revenue

The System has agreements with third-party payers that provide for payments to the System at amounts
different from its established rates. Payment arrangements include prospectively determined rates per
discharge, reimbursed costs, discounted charges, per diem payments and fee schedules. Net patient
service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors and
others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement
agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the
period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined.
Changes in these estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the year in which they occur. For
the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, net patient service revenue in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations increased by approximately $5,600 and $2,900, respectively, due
to actual settlements and changes in assumptions underlying estimated future third-party settlements.

Revenues from the Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 34% and 4% and
34% and 5% of the Hospital's net patient service revenue for the years ended September 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex
and subject to interpretation.

The Hospital recognizes patient service revenue associated with services provided to patients who have
third-party payor coverage on the basis of contractual rates for the serN'ices rendered. For uninsured
patients, the Hospital provides a discount approximately equal to that of its largest private insurance
payors. On the basis of historical experience, a significant portion of the Hospital's uninsured patients
will be unable or unwilling to pay for the ser\'ices provided. Thus, the Hospital records a significant
provision for doubtful accounts related to uninsured patients in the period the services are.provided.

Excess ofRevenues and Nonoperatin2 Income Over Expenses '

The System has deemed all activities as ongoing, major or central to the provision of health care services
and, accordingly, they are reported as operating revenue and expenses, except for contributions and
pledges without donor restrictions, the related philanthropy expenses and investment income which are
recorded as nonoperaiing income.

The consolidated statements of operations also include excess of revenues and nonoperating income over
expenses. Changes in net assets without donor restrictions which are excluded from excess of revenues
and nonoperating income over expenses, consistent with industry practice, include the change in net
unrealized gains and losses on investments other than trading securities or losses considered other than
temporary, pennanent transfers of assets to and from affiliates for other than goods and ser\'ices, pension

'  liability adjustments and contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions
which by donor restriction were to be used for the purposes of acquiring siich assets).

Estimated Workers' Comvensotion ami Health Care Claims

The provision for estimated workers' compensation and health care claims includes estimates of the
ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Functional Expense Allocation

The costs of providing program services and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis
in Note 10. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among program services and supporting services
benefitted.

Income Taxes

The Hospital, CRHCDC, CRHVC, and the Trust are not-for-profit corporations as described in Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, and are exempt from federal income taxes on related income
pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. NHC is organized as a single member limited liability company
and has elected to be treated as a disregarded entity for federal and state income tax reporting purposes.
Accordingly, all income or losses and applicable tax credits are reported on the member's income tax
returns, with the exception of taxes due to the State of New Hampshire. Management evaluated the
System's tax positions and concluded the System has maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have
any significant unrelated business income and had taken no uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to or disclosure in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Aclvertisine Costs

The System expenses advertising costs as incurred, and such costs totaled approximately $251 and $201
for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) (ASU 2016-14) - Presentation of Financial

'  Statements ofNot-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses the complexity and understandability of net
asset classification, deficiencies in infomiation about liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack
of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and investment return. ASU 2016-14
is effective for the System for, the year ended. September 30, 2019. The System has adjusted the
presentation of these consolidated financial statements and related footnotes accordingly. The ASU has
been applied retrospectively to all periods presented. The adoption of ASU 2016-14 had no impact to
changes in net assets or total net assets in 2019 or 2018.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (ASU 2014-
09), which requires revenue to be recognized when promised goods or services are transferred to
customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the System expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods and services. ASU 2014-09 will replace most existing revenue recognition
guidance in U.S. GAAP when it becomes effective. ASU 2014-09 is elTective for the System on
October 1,2019. ASU 2014-09 permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition
method. The System is evaluating the impact that ASU 2014-09 will have on its revenue recognition
policies, but does not expect the new pronouncement will have a material impact on its consolidated
financial statements.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

- NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Si2nificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-
10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (ASU 2016-01). The
amendments in ASU 2016-01 address certain aspects of recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of financial instruments. ASU 2016-01 is effective for the System for the year ended
September 30, 2020, .with early adoption penniited. The System is currently evaluating the impact that
ASU 2016-01 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) (ASU 2016-02). Under ASU
2016-02, at the commencement of a long-temi lease, lessees will recognize a liability equivalent to the
discounted payments due under the lease agreement, as well as an offsetting right-of-use asset. ASU
2016-02 is effective for the System on October 1, 2021, with early adoption permitted. Lessees (for
capital and operating leases) must apply a modified retrospective transition approach for leases existing
at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the fmanciaP
slatements. The modified retrospective approach would not require any transition accounting for leases
that expired before the earliest comparative period presented. Lessees may not apply a full retrospective
transition approach. The System is currently evaluating the impact of the pending adoption of ASU
2016-02 on the System's consolidated financial statements.

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230):
Restricted Cash (a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force) (ASU 2016-18), which provides
guidance on the presentation of restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents in the statement of cash
flows. ASU 2016-18 will be effective for the System's fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, and early
adoption is pemiitted. ASU 2016-18 must be applied using a retrospective transition method. The
System is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this guidance on its consolidated financial
statements.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance
for Contributions Received and Contributions Made (ASU 2018-08). Due to diversity in practice, ASU
2018-08 clarifies the definition of an exchange transaction as well as the criteria for evaluating .whether
contributions are unconditional or conditional. ASU 2018-08 is effective for the System on October 1,
2019, with early adoption pennitted. The System is currently evaluating the impact that ASU 2018-08
will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure
Framework - Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement (ASU 2018-13).
The amendments in this ASU modify the disclosure requirements for fair value measurements for
Level 3 assets and liabilities, and eliminate the requirement to disclose transfers between Levels 1 and 2
of the fair value hierarchy, among other modifications. ASU 2018-13 is effective for the System on

. October 1, 2020, with early adoption pennitted. The System is currently evaluating the impact that ASU
2018-13 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

ReclassiTications

Certain 2018 amounts have been reclassified to pennit comparison with the 2019 consolidated financial
statements presentation fonnat.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018
(In thousands)

1, Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued!

Subsequent Events

Management of the System evaluated events occurring between the end of the System's fiscal year and
•  December 10, 2019, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

2. Transactions With Affiliates

The System provides funds to CRHC and its affiliates which are used for a variety of purposes. The
System records the transfer of funds to CRHC and the other affiliates as either receivables or directly
against net assets, depending on the intended use and repayment requirements of the funds. Generally,
funds transferred for start-up costs of new ventures or capital related expenditures are recorded as
charges against net assets. For the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, transfers made to CRHC
were S(214) and $(157), respectively, and transfers received from Capital Region Health Services
Corporation (CRHSC) were $602 and $122, respectively.

. A brief description of afTiIiated entities is as follows:

•  CRHSC is a for-profil provider of health care ser\'ices, including an eye surgery center and assisted
living facility.

•  Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc. and Subsidiary (CRVNA) provides home health
care services.

Riverbend, Inc. provides behavioral health services.

Amounts due the System, primarily from joint ventures, totaled $1,200 and $1,427 at September 30,2019
and 2018, respectively. Amounts have been classified as current or long-ienii depending on the
intentions of the parties involved. Beginning in 1999, the Hospital began charging interest on a portion
of the receivables ($708 and $759 at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively) with principal and
interest.(6.75% at September 30, 2019) payments due monthly. Interest income amounted to $50 and
$58 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Contributions to affiliates and other community organizations .from net assets with donor restrictions
were $186 and $222 in 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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CONCORX) HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018
(In thousands)

3. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Short-term investments totaling 523,228 and $30,553 at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, are
comprised primarily of cash and cash equivalents. Assets whose use is limited or restricted are carried
at fair value and consist of the following at September 30:

2019 2018

Board designated funds:

Cash and cash equivalents $  7,762 $' 6,651
Fixed income securities 23,592 22,555
Marketable equity and other securities 242,088 248,760
Inflation-protected securities 11.226- 19.277

284,668 297,243

Held by trustee for workers' compensation reserves:
Fixed income securities 3,140 2;937

Self-insurance escrows and construction funds;

Cash and cash equivalents 10,568 10,912
Fixed income securities 14,816 33,593
Marketable equity securities 9.617 8.536

35,001 53,041

Donor-restricted funds and restricted grants:
Cash and cash equivalents 5,930 5,459
Fixed income securities 1,771 ■  1,832
Marketable equity securities 19,865 ■  20,200
Inflation-protected securities 921 1,565
Trust funds administered by others 10,903 11,051
Other 266 324

39.656 40.431

$362,465 $393,652

Included in marketable equity and other securities above are $175,251 and $172,826 at September 30,
2019 and 2018, respectively, in so called alternative investments and collective trust funds. See also
Note 14.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018
(in thousands)

3. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted (Continued)

investment income, net realized gains and losses and net unrealized gains and losses on assets whose
use is limited or restricted, cash and cash equivalents, and other investments are as follows at
September 30:

2019 2018

Net assets without donor restrictions:

interest and dividends ' S 5,606 $ 4,344
investment income from trust funds administered by others 530 54i
Net realized (losses) gains on sales of investments (9.863) 9.996

(3,727) 14,881

Net assets with donor restrictions:

interest and dividends 349 323

Net realized (losses) gains on sales of investments (779) 755
.  (430) 1.078

S (4.157) S 15.959

Net unrealized gains on investments;
Net assets without donor restrictions ' S 4,979 S 1,805
Net assets with donor restrictions 180 • 206.

S 5.159 . S 2.011

In compliance with the System's spending policy, portions of investment income and related fees are
.  recognized in other operating revenue on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations,
investment income reflected in other operating revenue was $1,710 and $1,779 in 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

Investment management fees expensed and reflected in nonoperating income were $863 and $917 for
the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.  September 30, 2019 and 2018
(in thousands)

Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted (Continued^

The following summarizes the Hospital's gross unrealized losses and fair values, aggregated by
investment category and length of tirhe that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized

loss position at September 30, 2019 and 2018:

Less Than 12 Months i2 Months or Longer Total

2019

Marketable equity
securities

Fund-of-funds

Collective trust funds

2018-

Marketable equity

securities

Fund-of-funds

Collective trust funds

Fair

Value

S  1,173
10,322
13.226

Unrealized

Losses

(432)
(747)

(490)

Fair

Value

Unrealized

Losses

513,650 S (1,029)

30.814 (2.497)

Fair

Value

514,823
10,322
44.040

Unrealized

Losses

(1.461)
(747)

(2.987)

S24.721 5 (1.669) 544.464 5 (3.526) 569.185' 5 (5.195)

5  1,743
10,300
16.894

S 28.937

(234)

(446)
i£N)

546.828

14.062

5 (9,261)

(897)

548,571

10,300
30.956-

5 (9,495)
(446)

(1.368)

(

S89.827 5(1 1.309)

In evaluating whether investments have suffered an otherrthan-temporary decline, based on input from
outside investment advisors, management evaluated the amount of the decline compared to cost, the
length of time and extent to which fair value has been less than cost, the underlying creditworthiness of
the issuer, the fair values exhibited during the year, estimated future fair values and the System's intent-
and ability to hold the security until a recovery in fair value or maturity. Based on evaluations of the
underlying issuers' financial condition, current trends and economic conditions, management believes
there are no securities that have suffered an other-than-temporary decline in value at September 30, 2019
and 2018.

4. Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The System has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (the Plan), covering all eligible employees
of the System and subsidiaries. The Plan provides benefits based on an employee's years of service, age
and the employee's compensation over those years. The System's funding policy is to contribute annually
the amount needed to meet or exceed actuarially detennined minimum funding requirements of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of1974 (ERISA).

The System accounts for its defined benefit pension plan under ASC 715, Compensation Retirement
Benefits. This Statement requires entities to recognize an asset or liability for the overfunded or
underfunded status of their benefit plans in their financial statements.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018
(In thousands)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

The following table summarizes the Plan's funded status at September 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Funded status:

Fair value of plan assets
' Projected benefit obligation

Activities for the year consist of:
Benefit payments and administrative expenses paid
Net periodic benefit cost

S 251,574 $ 235,752 •
(304.836^ (267.072)

S (53.262) S (31.320)

$  26,475
12,958

$  26,584
11,582

The table below presents details about the System's defined benefit pension plan, including its funded
status, components of net periodic benefit cost, and certain assumptions used in detennining the funded
status and cost:

Change in benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost

Interest cost

,  Actuarial loss (gain)

Benefit payments and administrative expenses paid
Other adjustments to benefit cost

Projected benefit obligation at end of year

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions

Benefit payments and administrative expenses

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Funded status and amount recognized in
noncurrent liabilities at September 30

2019 2018

$267,072 $277,075
10,332 8,702

12,096 11,991

40,111 (5,612)

(26,475) (26,584)

1.700 1.500

$304,836 $267,072

$235,752
1,297

41,000
(26.4751

$233,739
.  12,597
16,000

(26.584)

S251.574 $235.752

$(53.262)
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018
(in thousands)

4. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Amounts recognized as a change in net assets without donor restrictions during the years ended
September 30, 2019 and 2018 consist of:

2019 2018'

Net aciuarial loss $56,890 S 121

Net amortized loss (7,153) (7,996)
Prior service credit amortization 247 276

Total amount recognized S^2»2M S (7.5991

Pension Plan Assets

The fair values of the System's pension plan assets as of September 30,2019 and 2018, by asset category
are as follows (see Note 14 for level definitions). In accordance with ASU 2015-07, certain investments
that are measured using the net value per share practical expedient have not been classified in the fair

value hierarchy.

2019 2018 ■

Level 1 Level 1

Short-temi investments:

Money market funds $ 5,111 S 31,447
Equity securities:
Common stocks 9,356 10,188
Mutual funds - international 9,835 7,923
Mutual funds-domestic 64,805 49,090
Mutual funds - natural resources - 4,478
Mutual funds - infialion hedge 8,919 8,325

Fixed income securities:

Mutual funds - REIT 986 890

Mutual funds - fixed income 22.944 15.522

121,956 127,863

Funds measured at net asset value:

Equity securities:
Funds-of-funds - 77,700 71,202

Collective trust funds:

Equities 42,325 27,427
Fixed income 9.593 9.260

129.618 107.889

Total investments at fair value £235.7^.^
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018
(In thousands)

4. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

The target allocation for the System's pension plan assets as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, by asset
category are as follows:

2019 2018

Percentage Percentage
Target of Plan Target of Plan

Allocation Assets Allocation Assets

Short-term investments 0-20% 2% 0-20% 13%

Equity securities 40-80% 68 40-80% . 64

Fixed income securities 5-80% 13 5-80% 7

Other 0-30% 17 0-30% 16

The funds-of-funds are invested with ten investment managers and have various restrictions on
redemptions. One manager holding amounts totaling approximately SI 3 million at September 30, 2019
allows for semi-monthly redemptions, with 5 days' notice. One manager holding approximately
$7 million at September 30, 2019 allows for monthly redemptions, with 15 days' notice. Five managers
holding amounts totaling approximately $43 million at September 30, 20)9 allow for quarterly

redemptions, with notices ranging from 45 to 65 days. Two of the managers holding amounts of
approximately $8 million at September 30, 2019 allow for annual redemptions, with notice ranging from
60 to 90 days. One of the managers holding amounts of approximately $6 million at September 30, 2019
allows for redemptions on a semi-annual basis, with a notice of 60 days. The redemption is further
limited to 25% of the investment balance at each redemption period. The collective trust funds allow
for daily or monthly redemptions, with notices ranging from 6 to 10 days. Certain funds also may include
a fee estimated to be equal to the cost the fund incurs in converting investments to cash (ranging from
0.5% to 1.5%) or are subject to certain lock periods. -

The System considers various factors in estimating the expected long-tenn rate of return on plan assets.
Among the factors considered include the historical long-term returns on plan assets, the current and
expected allocation of plan assets, input from the System's actuaries and investment consultants, and
long-tenn inflation assumptions. The System's expected allocation of plan assets is based on a
diversified portfolio consisting of domestic and international equity securities, fixed income securities,

and real estate.

The System's investment policy for its pension plan is to balance risk and returns using a diversified
portfolio consisting primarily of high quality equity and fixed income securities. To accomplish this
goal, plan assets are actively managed by outside investment managers with the objective of optimizing
long-tenn return while maintaining a high standard of portfolio quality and proper diversification. The
System monitors the maturities of fixed income securities so that there is sufficient liquidity to meet
current benefit payment obligations. The System's Investment Committee provides oversight of the plan
investments and the perfonnance of the investment managers.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018

{In thousands)

4. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Amounts included in expense during fiscal 2019 and 2018 consist of:

2019 2018

Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost S 10,332 $ 8,702
Interest cost 12,096 11,991

Expected return on plan assets (18,076) (18,331)
Amortization of prior service credit and loss 6,906 7,720
Other adjustments to benefits cost 1.700 L500

Net periodic benefit cost S 12.958 S 11.582

The accumulated benefit obligations for the plan at September 30, 2019 and 2018 were $288,126 and
S251,736, respectively.

2019 2018

Weighted average assumptions to deiemiine benefit obligation:
Discount rate 3.59% 4.63%

Rate of compensation increase 2.50% for the next three 3.00
years; 3.00% thereafter

Weighted average assumptions to detennine net periodic benefit cost:
Discount rate 4.63% 4.29%

Expected return on plan assets / 7.75 7-75
Cash balance credit rate 5.00 5.00

Rate of compensation increase 3.00 3.00

In selecting the long-lenn rate of return on plan assets, the System considered the average rate of earnings
expected op the funds invested or to be invested to provide for the benefits of the plan. This included
considering the plan's asset allocation and the expected returns likely to be earned over the life of the
plan, as well as the historical returns on the types of assets held and the current economic environment.

The loss and prior ser\'ice credit amount expected to be recognized in net periodic benefit cost in 2020
are as follows:

Actuarial loss $ 1 1,420
Prior service credit (243)

£11.177

The System funds the pension plan and no contributions are made by employees. The System funds the
plan annually by making a contribution of at least the minimum amount required by applicable
regulations and as recommended by the System's actuary. However, the System may also fund the plan
in excess of the minimum required amount.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 201S
(In thousands)

4. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Cash contributions in subsequent years will depend on a number of factors including perfomiance of
plan assets. However, the System expects to fund S16,000 in cash contributions to the plan for the 2020
plan year.

Benefit payments, which reflect expected future ser\'ice, as appropriate, are expected to be paid as
follows:

Year Ended September 30 Pension Benefits

2020 $ 15,820
2021 16,452
2022 17,476
2023 18,590
2024 19,221
2025-2029 105,566

Effective September 26, 2018, the Plan entered into a group annuity contract with Pacific Life Insurance
Company. The contract was purchased for certain retirees of the Plan. A total of 354 participants were
entitled to receive benefits purchased under the contract. Annuity payments for participants commenced
on January 1, 2019 and Pacific Life Insurance Company will assume the risk for participants entitled to
receive benefits purchased under this contract. The Plan paid premiums totaling $9,135 and $9,241 in
September 2018 and October 2018, respectively, relating to the purchase of the contract.

5. Estimated Third-Pnrtv Favor Settlements

The System has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the System at amounts
different from its established rates. A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party
payors follows:

Medicare

Inpatient and outpatient services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries are primarily paid at
prospectively determined rates. These rates vary according to a patient classification system that is
based on clinical diagnosis and other factors. In addition to this, the System is also reimbursed for
medical education and other items which require cost settlement and retrospective review by the fiscal
intennediary. Accordingly, the System files an annual cost report with the Medicare program afier the
completion of each fiscal year to report activity applicable to the Medicare program and to determine
any final settlements.

Tlie physician practices are reimbursed on a fee schedule basis.

24
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018
(In thousands)

5. Estimated Third-Party Favor Settlements (Continued")

Meclicaid Enhancement Tax and Disproportionale Share Payment

Under the State of New Hampshire's (the State) tax code, the State imposes a Medicaid Enhancement
Tax (MET) equal to 5.40% of net patient service revenues in State fiscal years 2019 and 2018. The
amount of tax incurred by the System for 2019 and 2018 was $22,442 and $20,975, respectively.

In the fall of 2010, in order to remain in compliance with stated federal regulations, the State of New
Hampshire adopted a new approach related to Medicaid disproportionate share funding (DSH)
retroactive to July 1, 2010. Unlike the fonner funding method, the State's approach led to a payment
that was not directly based on, and did not equate to, the level of tax imposed. As a result, the legislation

. created some level of losses at certain New Hampshire hospitals, while other hospitals realized gains.
DSH payments from the State are recorded within revenue without donor restrictions and other support
and amounted to $ 19,215 in 2019 and $ 14,327 in 2018, net of reserves referenced below.

The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) has completed audits of the State's program
and the disproportionate share payments made by the State from 2011 to 2014, the first years that those
payments reflected the amount of uncompensated care provided by New Hampshire hospitals. It is
possible'that subsequent years will also be audited by CMS. The System has recorded reserves to address
its potential exposure based on the audit results to date or any future redistributions.

Medicaid

Inpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are paid at prospectively detenuined rates
per discharge. Outpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are reimbursed under
fee schedules and cost reimbursement methodologies subject to various limitations or discounts. The
Hospital is reimbursed at a tentative rate with final settlement detennined after submission of annual
cost reports by the Hospital and audits thereof by the Medicaid program.

The physician practices are reimbursed on a fee schedule basis.

Olher

The System has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers and
health maintenance organizations. The basis for payment to the System under these agreements includes
prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts from established charges, fee schedules, and
prospectively detennined rates.

The accrual for estimated third-party payor settlements reflected on the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets represents the estimated net amounts to be paid under reimbursement contracts with the
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (Medicare), the New Hampshire Department of Welfare
(Medicaid) and any commercial payors with settlement provision. Settlements for the Hospital have
been finalized through .2015 for Medicare and Medicaid.
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September 30, 2019 and 2018
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6. Long-Term Debt and Notes Payable

Long-term debt consists of the following at September 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority (NHHEFA)
Revenue Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2017; interest of
5.0% per year and principal payable in annual installments.
Installments ranging from $2,010 to $5,965 beginning October 2032,'
including unamortized original issue premium of $7,215 in 2019 and
S7,530in2018 $ 61,425 $61,740

3.38% to 5.0% NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series
2013A; due in annual installments, including principal and interest
ranging from $1,543 to $3,555 through 2043, including unamortized
original issue premium of $2,824 in 2019 and $2,945 in 2018 40,469 41,805

1.71% fixed rate NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue,
Series 2013B; due in annual installments, including principal and
interest ranging from $ 1,860 to $2,038 through 2024 9,341 13,079

4.25% to 5.5% NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series
2011; due in annual installments, including principal and interest
ranging from $2,737 to $.5,192 through 2026, including unamortized
original issue premium of $136 in 2019 and $155 in 2018 18,201 22.325

129,436 138,949

Less unamortized bond issuance costs (1,338) (1,425)

Less current portion ("7.3851 (9.0611

S120.713 SI 28.463

In December 2017, $62,004 (including an original issue premium of $7,794) of NHHEFA Revenue
Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2017, were issued to pay for the construction of a new medical
office building. In addition, the Series 2017 Bonds reimbursed the Hospital for capital expenditures
incurred in association with the construction of a parking garage and the construction of a medical office
building, as well as routine capital expenditures.

In February 2013, $48,631 (including an original issue premium of $3,631) of NHHEFA Revenue
Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2013 A, were issued to assist in the funding of a significant facility
improvement project and to advance refund the Series 2001 NHHEFA Hospital Revenue Bonds. The
facility improvement project included enhancements to the System's power plant, renovation of certain
nursing units, expansion of the parking capacity at the main campus and various other routine capital
expenditures and miscellaneous construction, renovation and improvements of the System's facilities.

In March 201 1, $49,795 ofNHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2011, were issued

to assist in the funding of a significant facility improvement project and pay off the Series 1996 Revenue
Bonds. The project included expansion and renovation of various Hospital departments, infrastructure
upgrades, and acquisition of capital equipment.
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6. Long-Term Debt and Notes Payable (Continued!

Substantially all the propeily and equipment relating to the aforementioned construction and renovation
projects, as well as subsequent property and equipment additions thereto, and a mortgage lien on the
facility, are pledged as collateral for the Series 2011,-2013A and B and 2017 Revenue Bonds. In
addition, the gross receipts of the Hospital are pledged as collateral for the Series 2011, 2013A and B
and 2017 Revenue Bonds. The most restrictive financial covenants require a 1.10 to 1.0 ratio of
aggregate income available for debt ser\'ice to total annual debt ser\'icc and a day's cash on hand ratio of

75 days. The Hospital was in compliance with its debt covenants at September 30, 2019 and 2018.

The obligations of the Hospital under the Series 2017, Series 2013A and B and Series 2011 Revenue
Bond,Indentures are not guaranteed by any of the subsidiaries or affiliated entities.

Interest paid on,long-term debt amounted to $6,350 (including capitalized interest of $652) and $5,530
(including capitalized interest of $167) for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The aggregate principal payments on long-tenn debt for the next five fiscal years ending September 30
and thereafter are as follows:

2020 $ 7,385
2021 .5,186
2022 5,340

2023 ' 5,485
2024 5,645

Thereafter 90,220

smm

7. Commitments and Contingencies

Malpractice Loss Comin^encies

Effective February I, 201 1, the System insures its medical malpractice risks through a multiprovider
captive insurance company under a claims-made insurance policy. Premiums paid are based upon
actuarially detennined amounts to adequately fund for expected losses. At September 30, 2019, there
were no known malpractice claims outstanding for the System, which, in the opinion of management
will be settled for amounts in excess of insurance coverage, nor were there any unassorted claims or

incidents which require loss accruals. The System has established reserves for unpaid claim amounts
for Hospital and Physician Professional Liability and General Liability reported claims and for
unreported claims for incidents that have been incurred but not reported. The amounts of the reserves
total $3,834 and $3,341 at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively and are reflected in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets within accrued pension and other long-tenn liabilities. The
possibility exists, as a nonnal risk of doing business, that malpractice claims in excess of insurance
coverage may be asserted against the System.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018
{in thousands)

7. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

The captive retains and funds up to actuarial expected loss amounts, and obtains reinsurance at various
attachment points for individual and aggregate claims in excess of funding in accordance with industry
practices. At September 30, 2019, the System's interest in the captive represents approximately 80% of
the captive. The System accounts for its investments in the captive under the equity method since control
of the captive is shared equally between the participating hospitals. The System has recorded its interest
in the captive's equity, totaling approximately $7,270 and $6,363 at September 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively, in other noncurrent assets on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Changes in
the System's interest are included in nonoperating income on the accompanying consolidated statements
ofoperations

In accordance with ASU No. 2010-24, "Health Care Entities" (Topic 954): Presentation of Inhtrance
Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries, at September 30, 2019 and 2018, the Hospital recorded a
liability of approximately $4,100 and $1,000, respectively, related to estimated professional liability
losses. At September 30, 2019 and 2018, the Hospital also recorded a receivable of $4,100 and $1,000,
respectively, related to estimated recoveries under insurance coverage for recoveries of the potential
losses. These amounts are included in accrued pension and other long-tenn liabilities and other assets,
respectively, on the consolidated balance sheets.

Workers' Compensation

The Hospital maintains workers' compensation insurance under a self-insurance plan. The plan offers,
among other provisions, certain specific and aggregate stop-loss coverage to protect the Hospital against
excessive losses. The Hospital has employed independent actuaries to estimate the ultimate costs, if any,
of the settlement of such claims. Accrued workers' compensation losses of $2,797 and $2,523 at
September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, are recorded within accounts payable and accrued expenses
on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and have been discounted at 3% (both years) and, in
management's opinion, provide an adequate reserve for loss contingencies. A trustee held fund has been
established as a reserve under the plan. Assets held in trust totaled $3,140 and $2,937 at September 30,
2019 and 2018, respectively, and is included in assets whose use is limited or restricted in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Litigation

The System is involved in litigation and regulatory investigations arising in the ordinary course of
business. After consultation with legal counsel, management estimates that these, matters will be
resolved without material adverse effect on the System's financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

-Health Insurance

The System has a self-funded health insurance plan. The plan is administered by an insurance company
which assists in detennining the current funding requirements of participants under the terms of the plan
and the liability for claims and assessments that would be payable at any given point in time. The System
recognizes revenue for ser\'ices provided to employees of the System during the year. The System is
insured-above a stop-loss amount of $440 on individual claims. Estimated unpaid claims, and those
claims incurred but not reported at September 30, 2019 and 2018, have been recorded as a liability of
$4,391 and $6,724, respectively, and are reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
within accounts payable and accrued expenses;
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7. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Operating Leases

The System has various operating leases relative to its office and bffsite locations. Future annual
minimum lease payments under noncancellable lease agreements as of September 30, 2019 are as
follows:

Year Ending September 30:
■2020 $ 6,833
2021 ' . . 6,278
2022 5,842
2023 5,673
2024 " " 4,796
Thereafter ' . ' 13.142

Rent expense was $7,392 and $6,616 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

8. . Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at September 30:

2019 2018
Purpose restriction:

Health education and program services $ 14,734 $ 15,481
Capital acquisitions 1,764 1,646
Indigent care 133 239
Pledges receivable with stipulated

purpose and/or lime restrictions 223 214
16,854 17,580

Perpetual in nature:
Health education and program services 18,319 17,759
Capital acquisitions 803 803
Indigent care 1,811 1,810
Annuities to be held in perpetuity 275 275

21.208 20.647

Total net assets with donor restrictions S38.Q62 S38.227
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9. Patient Service and Other Revenue

Net patient service revenue for the years ended September 30 is as follows:

2019 2018

Gross patient service charges:
Inpatient services $  570,029 $ 538,592
Outpatient services 687,370 641,817

Physician services 215,885 177,347
Less charitable services (12.7731 (12.0211

1,460,511 1,345,735

Less contractual allowances and discounts:

Medicare (543,569) (487,941)
Medicaid 1  . (130,615) (98,632)

, Other (279.0511 (267.2141

(953.2351 (853.7871

Total Hospital net patient service revenue (net of
contractual allowances and discounts) 507,276 491,948.

Other entities 2.822 699

An estimated breakdown of patient ser\'ice revenue, net of contractual allowances, discounts and
provision for doubtful accounts recognized in 2019 and 2018 from these major payor sources, is as
follows for the Hospital. The provision for doubtful accounts for subsidiaries of the Hospital was not
significant in 2019 and 2018.

Hospital

2019

Private payors (includes
coinsurance and deductibles)

Medicaid

Medicare

Self-pay

Gross

Patient

Service

Revenues

563,410

152,217

714,262

30.622

Contractual Provision

Allowances for

and Doubtful

Discounts ) Accounts

$(261,239)
(130,615)
(543,569)
(17.8121

$(13,850)

(3,956)
(5.9341

Net Patient

Service

Revenues

Less Provision

for Doubtful

Accounts

$288,321
21,602

166,737
6.876

s(^;?,74Q)
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9. Patient Service and Other Revenue (Continued)

2018

Private payers (includes
coinsurance and deductibles)

Medicaid

Medicare

Self-pay

Gross

Patient

Ser\'ice

Revenues

527,965

134,761
654,270
28.739

Hospital

Contractual

Allowances

and

Discounts

5(236,785)
(112,341)
(487,941)

(16.720)

Provision

for

Doubtful

Accounts

5(17,106)

■  (4.887)
(7.329)

5(29.322)

Net Patient

Service

Revenues

Less Provision

for Doubtful

Accounts

5274,074

22,420

161,442

4.690

10. Functional Expenses

The System provides general health care services to residents within its geographic location. Expenses
related to providing these services are as follows for the year ended September 30, 2019:

' Health General and Fund-

Services Administrative raisine Total

Salaries and wages 5208,279 541,607 5  473 5250,359
Employee benefits 51,485 10,285 117 61,887
Supplies and other 91,029 14,912 154 106,095

Purchased services 24,362 8,369 134 32,865

Professional fees 7,675 6 - 7,681
Depreciation and amortization 17,459 8,415 276 26,150
Medicaid enhancement tax 22,442 - - 22,442

Interest 3.173 1,506 50 4.729

5425.904 $85.100 S 1.204 $^22QR

For the'year ended Sejjtember 30, 2018, excluding Medicaid enhancement tax, depreciation and
amortization expense and interest expense, the System provided 5356,348, 576,788 and 5946 in health
services expense, general and administrative expenses and fundraising expenses, respectively.
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10. Functional Expenses (Continued!

The consolidated financial statements repon certain expense categories that are attributable to more than
•  one healthcare sen'ice or support function. Therefore, these expenses require an allocation on a

reasonable basis that is consistently applied. Costs not directly attributable to a function, such as
depreciation and interest, are allocated to a function based on square footage. Supporting activities that

, are not directly identifiable with one or more healthcare programs are classified as general and
administrative. If it is impossible or impractical to make a direct identification, allocation of the

expenses were made according to management's estimates. Employee benefits are allocated in
accordance with the ratio of salaries and wages of the functional classes. Specifically identifiable costs
are assigned to the flmction which they are identified to.

11. Charity' Care and CommuniW Benefits fUnaudited)

The Hospital maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care it provides. The Hospital
provides traditional charity care, as well as other forms of community benefits. The estimated cost of
all such benefits provided is as follows for the years ended September 30:

2019 2018 .

Government sponsored heMthcare 529,683 $24,645
Community health services 2,190 2,131
Health professions education 2.874 3,596
Subsidized health services 42.431 40,595
Research 84 91

Financial contributions 552 605

Community building activities 40 8

Community benefit operations 70 58

Charity care costs (see Note 1) 4,696 .  4.528

In addition, the Hospital incurred estimated costs for services to Medicare patients in excess of the
payment from this program of $68,494 and $60,867 in 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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12. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Hospital grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents of southern
New Hampsliire and are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of gross receivables from
patients and third-party payors as of September 30 is as follows:

2019 2018

Patients 12% 9%
Medicare 32 36
Anthem Blue Cross 14 16

Cigna ^ ^
Medicaid H 10
Commercial 25 23

Workers' compensation 3 3

13. Volunteer Services (Unaudited)

Total volunteer service hours received by the Hospital were approximately 24,200 in 2019 and 13,300
in 2018. The volunteers provide various nonspecialized services to the Hospital, none of which has been
recognized as revenue or expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

14. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement dale, in
determining.fair value, the System uses various methods including market, income and cost approaches.
Based on these approaches, the System often utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk" and or the risks inherent in the
inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or
generally unobsen'able inputs. The System utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Based on the observability of the inputs
used in the valuation techniques, the System is required to provide the following infonnation according
to the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy ranks the quality and reliability of the information
used to determine fair values. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value will be classified and
disclosed in one of the following three categories;

Level I - Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets, such as the New
York Stock Exchange. Level 1 also includes U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities and federal
agency mortgage-backed securities, which are traded by dealers or brokers in active markets.
Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving
identical assets or liabilities.
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14. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Level 2 - Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets.

Valuations are obtained from third parly pricing services for identical or similar assets or liabilities.

Level 3 - Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other valuation methodologies,
including option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not based
on market exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain
assumptions and projections in detennining the fair value assigned to such assets or liabilities.

In determining the appropriate levels, the System performs a detailed analysis of the assets and liabilities.
There have been no changes in the methodologies used at September 30, 2019 and 2018. In accordance
with ASU 2015-07, certain investments that are measured using the net value per share practical
expedient have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy.

The following presents the balances of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at September 30:
O

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

,  2019
Gash and cash equivalents $ 47,488 $ - S - $ 47,488
Fixed income securities 41,310 - - 41,310
M^trketable equity and other securities 96,319 - - 96,319
Infiation-protected securities and other ' 12,413 - - 12,413
Trust funds administered by others - - 10.903 10.903

S197.530 S_^ S 10.903 208,433

Funds measured at net asset value:

Marketable equity and other securities 175.251

2018

Cash and cash equivalents ' $ 53,575 $ - $ - $ 53,575
Fixed income securities 60,917 - - . 60,917

Marketable equity and other securities 104,670 - - 104,670
Inflation-protected securities and other 21,166 - - 21,166
Trust funds administered by others - - 11.051 11.051

$240.328 S1I.05I 251,379

Funds measured at net asset value:

Marketable equity and other securities 172.826
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14. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

In addition, in 2019, there are certain investments totaling $2,009 which are appropriately being carried
at cost.

The System's Level 3 investments consist of funds administered by others. The fair value measurement
is based on significant unobservable inputs.

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit and overall market
volatility. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the fair value of investments will occur in
the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets and statements of operations.

A reconciliation of the fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as
follows for 2019 and 2018:

•  Trust Funds

Administered

bv Others

Balance at September 30, 2017

Net realized and unrealized gains

Balance at September 30, 2018

Net realized and unrealized losses

Balance at September 30, 2019

S11,002

49

11,051

(148)

SI 0.903

The table below sets forth additional disclosures for investment funds (other than mutual funds) valued
based on net asset value to further understand the nature and risk of the investments by category:

September 30,.2019;
Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Collective trust funds

Collective trust funds

Fair

Value

$15,855
10,123
57,755

14,807
8,912

4,979
14,569

. 48,251

Unfunded

Commit

ments

15,283

Redemption
Frequency

Semi-monthly
Monthly
Quarterly
Annual

Semi-annual

illiquid
Daily
Monthly

Redemption
Notice

Period

5 days
15 days

45 - 65 days
60 - 90 days
60 days*
N/A

10 days

6-10 days
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14. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Unfunded Redemption
Fair Commit Redemption Notice

Value ments Freouencv Period

September 30, 2018:
Funds-of-funds $15,060 ■ $  - Semi-monthly 5 days
Funds-of-funds 10,300 - Monthly 15 days

Funds-of-funds 52,984 - Quarterly 45 - 65 days
Funds-of-funds 19,348 - Annual 60 - 90 days
Funds-of-funds 8,342 - Semi-annual 60 days*
Funds-of-funds 2,033 4,412 Illiquid N/A

Collective trust funds 14,062 - Daily 10 days
Collective trust funds. 50,697 - Monthly 6-10 days

* Limited to 25% of the investment balance at each redemption.

Investment Strategies

Fixed Income Securities

The primary purpose of fixed income investments is to provide a highly predictable and dependable
source of income, preserve capital, and reduce the volatility of the total portfolio and hedge against the
risk of deflation or protracted economic contraction.

Marketable Eaiiitv and Other Securities

The primary purpose of marketable equity investments is to provide appreciation of principal and growth
of income with the recognition that this requires the assumption of greater market volatility and risk of

loss. The total marketable equity portion of the portfolio will be broadly diversified according to
economic sector, industry, number of holdings and other characteristics including style and
capitalization. The System' may employ multiple equity investment managers, each of whom may have
distinct investment styles. Accordingly, while each manager's portfolio may not be fully diversified, it

is expected that the combined equity portfolio will be broadly diversified.

The System invests in other securities that are considered alternative investments that consist of limited
partnership interests in investment funds, whieh, in turn, invest in diversified portfolios predominantly
comprised of equity and fixed income securities, as well as options, futures contracts, and some other
less liquid investments. Management has approved procedures pursuant to the methods in which the
System values these investments at fair value, which ordinarily will be the amount equal to the pro-rata
interest in the net assets of the limited partnership, as such value is supplied by, or on behalf of, each
investment from time to lime, usually monthly and/or quarterly by the investment manager. Collective
trust funds are generally valued based on the proportionate share of total fund net assets.
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14. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

System management is responsible for the fair value measurements of investments reported in the
consolidated financial statements. Such amounts are generally determined using audited financial,

. statements of the funds and/or recently settled transactions and is estimated using the net asset value per
share of the fund. Because of inherent uncertainty of valuation of certain alternative investments, the
estimate of the fund manager or general partner may differ from actual values, and differences could be
significant. Management believes that reported fair values of its alternative investments at the balance
sheet dates are reasonable.

The Hospital has committed to invest up to $19,683 with various investment managers, and had funded
$4,400 of that commitment as of September 30, 2019. As these investments are made, the Hospital
reallocates resources from its current investments resulting in an asset allocation shift within the
investment pool.

.  Inflation-Protected Securities

The primary purpose of inflation-protected securities is to provide protection against the negative effects
of inflation.

Fair Value of Other Financial Imlruments

Other financial instruments consist of accounts and pledges receivable, accounts payable and accrued
expenses, estimated third-party payor settlements, and long-term debt and notes payable. The fair value
of all financial instruments other than long-term debt and notes payable approximates their relative book
values as these financial instruments have short-term maturities or are recorded at amounts that

approximate fair value. The fair value of the System's long-term debt and notes payable is estimated
using discounted cash flow analyses, based on the System's current incremental borrowing rates .for
similar types of borrowing arrangements. The carrying value and fair value of the System's long-term
debt and notes payable amounted to $129,436 and $148,672, respectively, at September 30, 2019, and
$138,949 and $155,435, respectively, at September 30, 2018.

15. Financial Assets and Liquidity Resources

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on debt, and capital construction costs, consisted of
the following at September 30, 2019:

Cash and cash equivalents .$ 6,404
Short-tenn investments 23,228
Accounts receivable 68,614
Funds held by trustee for workers' compensation

reserves, self-insurance escrows and construction costs 38.141

SI .36.387
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15. Financial Assets and Liquidity Resources (Continued)

To manage liquidity, the System maintains sufTlcient cash and cash equivalent balances to support daily
operations throughout the year. Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments include bank
deposits, money market funds, and other similar vehicles that generate a return on cash and provide daily
liquidity to the System. In addition, the System has board-designated assets without donor restrictions
that can be utilized at the discretion of management to help fund both operational needs and/or capital
projects. As of September 30, 2019, the balance of liquid investments in board-designated assets was

$276,690.
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Baker Newman & Noyes LLC

MAINE I MASSACHUSETTS 1 NEW HAMPSHIRE

800.244.74441 www.bnncpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

ON ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The Board of Trustees

Concord Hospital, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Concord Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the System)
as of and for the years ended September 30,2019 and 2018, and have issued our report thereon, which contains
an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. See page 1. Our audits were conducted for
the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole. The 2019 consolidating
information and 2018 summarized comparative information is presented for purposes of additional analysis
rather than to present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the individual entities and
is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to. prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements .themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the. consolidated
financial statements as a whole.

Ba^r LVC
Manchester, New Hampshire
December 10, 2019
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

(With Consolidated Totals for September 30, 2018)

September 30, 2019

ASSETS

(In thousands)

2019

Net property and equipment 171.390 9.962 336

' Capital Capital
Concord Region Region
Hospital Health Care Health NH 2018

(Obligated Development "Ventures- Cares Elimi Consol Consol

Group") Corporation Corporation ACO nations idated idated

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $  6,385 $  - $  19 $ - $ $  6,404 $  4,691
Short-term investments 23,228 -

- -

- 23,228 30,553
Accounts receivable, net 68,277 - 325 12 - 68,614 70,261
Due from affiliates 630 6,877 (43) 20 (6,992) 492 659

Supplies 2,296 - 100 -

- 2,396 2,079
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 6.379 227 56 —

— 6.662 5.262

Total current a.ssets 107,195 7,104 457 32 (6,992) ■ 107,796 113,505

Assets whose use is limited or restricted:

Board designated 284,668 - -

- - 284,668 297,243
Funds held by trustee for workers' compensation reserves.

self-in-surance escrows and construction funds 38,141 - - - - 38,141 55,978
Donor-restricted funds and restricted grants 39.656 _

_ —

— 39.656 40.431

Total assets whose use is limited or restricted 362,465 - • - - • 362,465 393,652

Other noncurrent assets:

Due from affiliates, net of current portion 14,341 - • - - (13,633) - 708 768

Other assets 16.562 _ 1.778 _
— 18.340 13.344

Total other noncurrent assets 30,903 - 1,778 - (13,633) 19,048 14,112

Property and equipment:
Land and land improvements 6,059 279 - - - 6,338 6,942

Buildings 158,682 35,519 100 - - 194,301 195,301
Equipment 239,849 .2,698 2,287 - - 244,834 292,694
Construction in progress 38.734 — . - — - 38.734 7.044

443,324 •• 38,496 2,387 . — - 484,207 501,981
Less accumulated depreciation 1271.934) 128.534") (2.051) - - (302.519) (332.923)

181.688 169.058

S 2.571 $_32 Sf2Q.625)
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

(in thousands)

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued compensation and related expenses
Due to affiliates

Accrual for estimated third-party payor settlements
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portion
Accrued pension and other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

2019

Capital Capital
Concord Region Region
Hospital Health Care Health NH 2018

(Obligated Development Ventures- Cares Elimi Consol Consol

Grouo) Corooration Corooration ACO nations idated idated

$ 34,211 $  24 $  87 $ 32 $  - S 34,354 $ 36,190
28,174 — — —

- 28,174 26,646
6,992 - - - (6,992) - -

34,569 — — - - 34,569 35,378
7.385 _ _

— — 7.385 9.061

111,331 24 87 32 (6,992) 104,482 107,275

120,713 13,633 _ (13,633) 120,713 128,463

74.718 — 74.718 48.302

306,762 13.657 87 32 (20,625) 299,913 284,040

327,129 3,409 2,484 333,022 368,060
38.062 _ _ — 38.062 38.227

365.191 3.409 2.484 _ _ 371.084 406.287

S 671.953 S 17.066 $ 2.5'7I S_i2 Sf20.6251 5; 670.997 S 690.327
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, LNC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(With Consolidated Totals'for September 30, 2018)

Year Ended September 30, 2019

(in thousands)

Revenue and other support without donor restrictions;
Net patient service revenue, net of

contractual allowances and discounts

Provision for doubtful accounts

Net patient service revenue less
provision for doubtful accounts

Other revenue

Disproportionate share revenue
Net assets released from restrictions for operations

Total revenue and other support without donor restrictions

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies and other
Purchased ser\'ices

Professional fees

Depreciation and amortization
Medicaid enhancement tax

Interest expense
Total operating expenses

income from operations

Nonoperating income:
,  Gifts and bequests without donor restrictions

Investment (loss) income and other
Net periodic benefits cost, other than service cost

Total nonoperating (loss) income

Excess of revenues and nonoperating income over expenses

2019

Capital Capital
Concord Region Region
Hospital Health Care Health NH 2018

(Obligated Development Venlures- Cares Elimi • Consol Consol

Grouo) Corooration Corooration ACO nations idated idated

$ 507,276 S  - $ 2,822 S - $  - ■ $ 510,098 $ 492,647
(23.7401 _ (86) _ — .  (23.826) (29.329)

483,536 2,736 486,272 463,318
13,108 5,395 7,402 32 (4,050) 21,887 20,496
19,215 -

-
—

— 19,215 14,327
1.439 _ 14 _ _ 1.453 . 2.112

517,298 ■ 5,395 10,152 32 (4,050) 528,827 500,253

248,389 1,387 . 583 250,359 233,356
61,275 - 475 - 137 .  61,887 52,130
106,240 1,707 1,298 - (3,150) 106,095 98,713
32,445 780 390 32 (782) 32,865 43,352
7,681 —

—
- - 7,681 6,531

24,650 1,280 220 - - 26,150 27,574
22,442 — -

-
- 22,442 20,975

4.677 889 1 — (838) 4.729 4.873

507.799 •  4.656- 3,771 32 (4.050) 512.208 487.504

9,499 . 739 6,381 - .  - 16,619 12,749

304 304 317

(4,906) - -
- - (4,906) 12,878

(2.626) —
— — - (2.626) (2.880)

(7.228) (7.228) 10.315

S  7 271 S  739 S 6.381 $ - S  - S  9.391 .1; 23.064
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Board of Trustees 2020

Our governing Board of Trustees is made up of our President & CEO, representatives of our medical staff
and community member volunteers who have demonstrated an interest In and commitment to the
health of our community.

Valerie Acres, Esq.

Community Member

Sol Asmer, Chair

Community Member

Frederick Bricettl.

NH Oncology and Hematology

William chapman, Esq., Secretary
Orr and Reno PA

Rosemary M. Heard

CATCH Neighborhood Housing

Lucy Karl, Esq.

Shaeen and Gordon

Peter Noordsjl, MD

Concord Orthopaedics, PA

Manisha Patel, DDS

Center for Contemporary Dentistry

David Ruedig

USB Financial Services

Muriel Schadee, CPA

Nathan Wechsler & Co., PA

Robert Segal

Sanel Auto Parts



CONCORD
HOSPITAL

Board of Trustees 2020

Robert Steigmeyer, President and CEO (ex-oftcio)

Capital Region Healthcare/Concord Hospital

David Stevenson, MO

Concord Hospital Family Place Prenatal Care

Jeffrey Towie

Davis and Towie insurance

Tanja Vanderlinde, MD, CH Medical Staff President (ex-oficio)

Concord Hospital Internal Medicine



Peter A.Dow RT(R]

Education:

• Plymouth Regional High School-graduated 1988

• Manchester Technical College-Associates Degree in Fitness

Technology (1989-1990)

• NHTI -Associates Degree in Radiology Technology (1990-1992)

Work Experience:

Per Diem:

® Concord Hospital—(1992)

® Concord imaging Center—(1992)

• Concord Orthopedics—(1992)

• Franklin Regional Hospital—(1992)

Full Time:

• Franklin Regional Hospital-I XR/CT Scan (1992-1993)

• XRay PA-XR/Mobile XR/EKG- (1993-1995)

• Concord Hospital—XR/Mobile XR/EKG- (1995-present)

Certifications:

• ARRT (1992-present)

p ASRT (1992-present)

• BLS
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Donald EMnnls, ir RT(R)

Education

1981- Graduated from Joseph A Foran High Schooi-Mliford, CT

1981-1982- University of New Haven, CT-Criminai Justice

1983-1985- NH Technical Institute, Concord, NH

Associate of Science, RadiologicTechnplogy-Passed Registry

Work Experience

August 1985 to December 1988, staff x-ray technologist at

Franklin Regional Hospital, Franklin, NH

December 1988 to June 1995- staff and mobile x-ray

technologist for X-Ray P.A. Concord, NH

July 1995 to present- mobile x-ray technologist for Concord

Hospital, Concord, NH

*Promoted to chief technologist. Mobile X-Ray in 1999

Active member of ASRT (American Society of Radiologic

Technologists) since 1996



CONCORD HOSPITAL

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract
Donald McGinnis RT(R) Radiologic Technologist S82,430/vr 0 0
Peter Dow RT(R) Radiologic Technologist S78,624/vr 0 0

.



Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Lor! A. Shiblnelte

Chief Executive Officer

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

NEiV HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL .

36 CLINTON STREET, CONCORD, NH 0330!
603-271-5300 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 5300

Fax:603-271-5395 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

April 2, 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Behavioral Health, New
Hampshire Hospital, to enter into a sole source agreement with Concord Hospital, Inc. {Vendor
#177653) 250 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH, 03301, for radiology services in an amount not to exceed
$69,000 effective April 1, 2018, or upon the date of Governor & Executive Council approval, whichever
is later, through June 30, 2020. 20% Federal Funds, 34% General Funds and 46% Other Funds.

Funds are available in State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019, and are anticipated to be available in

State Fiscal Year 2020 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budget. ^

05-095-94-940010-8750 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS:
NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ACUTE PSYCHIATRIC SERVICES

State Fiscal

Year
Class Account Description Job Number

Budget
Amount

2018 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 94057300 $7,500

2019 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 94057300 $30,000

2020 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 94057300 $31,500.

Total $69,000

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because Concord Hospital has the necessary skills and demeanor
to work successfully with behavior health clients. In addition, the Vendor is located in close proximity to
the Acute Psychiatric Facility allowing for quick access to services on a twenty-four (24) hour, seven (7)
days a week basis.

The purpose of this agreement is to allow the Department to continue providing radiology
services to New Hampshire Hospital patients. Concord Hospital will provide mobile radiology services
including interpretation of images for patients that are unable to leave the Acute Psychiatric Services
facility. These services include x-ray and EKG as deemed appropriate by the attending physician.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of the Agreement, the Department reserves the option to extend
contract services for up to four (4) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds,
satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor; and Executive Council.



His ExceNency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the Department may not
be able to determine the severity of patients' conditions thus jeopardizing the wellbeing and recovery of
patients while in the care of New Hampshire Hospital.

Area served: New Hampshire Hospital

Source of Funds: 46% Other Funds (Medicare, Medicaid and Third Party Insurance), 34%
General Funds and 20% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Health 'and Human Services,
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, Medical Assistance Program, Code of Federal Domestic
Assistance Number (CFDA) 93.778, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 1805NH05ADMIN.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

LoitShibinette

(lef Executive Officer

Approved by:'
Meyers

Commissioner

Tbv Department ofHealth and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and famHics
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subjeci: Radiology Services (SS'20i8-NHH-l I-RADIO)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

LI State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Concord Hospital, Inc.

1.4' Contractor Address

250 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-230-7279

1.6 Account Number

05-095-094-940010-87500000-

101-500729

1.7 Completion Date

June 30.2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$69,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
E. Maria Reinemann, Esq., Director
Bureau of Contracts & Procurements

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9330

1. 11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signator>'

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of /UH .Countyof

On , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1. 12, or satisfactorily
proven to,

indicatq^<i
f^hose name is signed in block 1. 1 1, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity

j3^^^^iatiyi^ofw or Justice of the Peace

13^ lyfeic and Titl(^rf N^ary or Justice of the Peace

/r L C Pi-€- j
. 14 StateAgiWy™ gnature

,L rA^kxidhl Date:

. 15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

/ net ^ I 'npHf 14-^
.16 Approval by theN.H. Department of Adminislralioh, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

il (ifapplicLhIe) 7 ?, 18 Approval by the Governorymd\Executive Coupc^l (ifapplicphle)

By: I 1 On:

Page I of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The Slate ofNew Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("S^te"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hcrcundcr, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approN'al is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("EfTeciive Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the.
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hcreunder,- including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hcreunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, (fever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80;7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT

OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor, In addition, the Contractor •
shall.comply with all.applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 1 1246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department qf Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the Stale of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access tO'any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts',for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firrn or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined efTort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or,performance of this

2 of 4
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any.dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days afler giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default'and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
.performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
flies, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any properly which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason..
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERM INATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifleen (15) days afler the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

i

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO ihe acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reser\'ed to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $ 1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificatc(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified tn block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certiricate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each ccrtificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("IVorkers' Compensation").
15.2 To the eMent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Offcer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation In the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OK BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof af)er any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the Slate of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law. rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTIONOF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parlies to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreernent
arc for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Radiology Servcles

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services

they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful

access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective

date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New

Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the

Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities

and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance

therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall

continue after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any

payments for services provided after June 30, 2019, unless and until an

appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and

funds encumbered for the SFY 2020-2021 biennium.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall proyide mobile X-Ray sen/ices for clients at New Hampshire
Hospital.

2.2. The Contractor shall take, interpret, and report on X-Ray images.

2.3. The Contractor shall interpret and report on Electrocardiograms (EKG) taken by and

as requested by the New Hampshire Hospital.

2.4. The Contractor shall provide X-Ray services by qualified and licensed technicians

registered with the American Registry of Radioiogic Technologists.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide X-Ray services as prescribed by the New Hampshire
Hospital, subject to New Hampshire Hospital approval.

2.6. The Contractor shall make sen/ices available Monday through Friday, 7:00 am to
5:00 pm and on Saturdays, 7:00 am to 5:00 pm.

2.7. The Contractor shall provide all routine X-Rays on the same day as requested by
New Hampshire Hospital.

2.8. The Contractor shall have a Board Certified Radiologist read and interpret the X-

Rays.

2.9. The Contractor shall telephone preliminary findings to New Hampshire Hospital the
same day the X-Ray was taken and fax final reports within five (5) business days.

SS-20ie-NHH-11.RADIO Exhibit A Contractor iniliais
Concord Hospital, Inc. / / a
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Radiology Servcles

Exhibit A

2.10. The Contractor shall provide radiologist^ telephone consultations and be on call

twenty-four (24) hours, a day, seven (7) days a week. The Contractor shall provide a

telephone number for New Hampshire Hospital to contact the consultants.

2.11. The Contractor shall operate, maintain, and test all portable radiology equipment In
accordance with a radiation protection program that ensures the safety of those

using the equipment, those being examined, and the -environment In which

equipment being used. The Contractor will train all personnel working the portable
radiology equipment in radiation safety.

2.12. The Contractor shall maintain records that include at a minimum the client's name

and medical record number, date the service(s) were provided, and a description of

the service(s) using the code names and numbers in Exhibit B-1, Fee Schedule.

2.13. The Contractor shall utilize the New Hampshire Hospital secure electronic
messaging system, when available, for secure exchange of client information.

2.14. The Contractor warrants that It Is Medicare and Medicaid approved and properly

licensed by the State of New Hampshire.

2.15. The Contractor agrees to a Criminal Background Check.

2.16. The Contractor shall complete a required orientation of New Hampshire Hospital's

policies and safety requirements and any New Hampshire Hospital provided

continuing education classes thereafter, at the^discretlon of New Hampshire Hospital.
Classes include:

2.16.1. Boundaries (2 Hours)

2.16.2. Cultural Awareness (2 Hours) •

2.16.3. Rehab Orientation (1-2 Hours)

2.16.4. Cues to Crisis (2-4 Hours)

SS-201d-NHH-11-RADlO Exhibit A Contractor initlsis
Concord Hospital. Inc. i/.* / ̂
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Radiology Servcles

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block 1.8,
for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded by:

2.1. New Hampshire General Funds;

2.2. Other Funds from Provider Fees; and

2.3. Federal Funds from the United States Department of Health and Human Services,
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, Medical Assistance Program Code of
Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.778.

2.3.1. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services in
compliance with funding requirements.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1. The Contractor will be reimbursed for services performed in accordance with Exhibit B-
1, Fee Schedule.

3.2. The Contractor will submit monthly invoices by the tenth (1 working day of each
month, which Identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred
in the prior month.

3.3. Invoices shall include the client's Medical Record Number, date{s) of service, and the
services provided using the code names and numbers; and rate fees in accordance with
Exhibit B-1, Fee Schedule.

3.4. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
accurate invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

3.5. Invoices must be submitted to:

Financial Manager
New Hampshire Hospital
36 Clinton Street

Concord, NH 03301

4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

SS-2018-NHH-11-RAOIO Exhibil B Contraclor Initials

Concord Hospital, Inc. Page 1 of 1 Date s/s-ljiS



Exhibit B-1 Fee Schedule

Concord Hospital Mobile X-Ray Services Fee Schedule

Contract Level 3 FIM# 2010 Price 2016 Price

6663 MXC-ABOOMEN-KUB-1-VIEW Contract Level 3 41-9563 101.20 $111.32
9564 MXC-ABDOMEN-KUB-2-VIEW Contract Level 3 41-9564 114.80 $126.28
9568 MXC-ABDOMEN-KUB-2-TO-6-V1EWS Contract Level 3 41-9568 122.65 $134.92
9568 MXC-ANKLE-a-VIEW-LEFT Contract Level 3 41-9569 165JZ5 $115.78
9570 MXC-ANKLE-3-VlEW-RIGKT Contract Level 3 41-9570 105.25 $115.78
9572 MXC-CHEST-DECUB-RT Contract Level 3 41-9572 101.76 $111.93
9574 MXOCHEST-1V}EW(AP/PA) Contract Level 3 41-9574 95.50 $105.05
9575 MXC-CHEST-OECUB-BILAT(PANEL) Contract Level 3 41-9575 118.70 $130.57
9577 MXC-CHEST-PAi-LAT-KIBUQUES Contract Level 3 41-9577 11100 $124.30
957S MXOCLAVICLE-LEFT Contract Level 3 41-9576 101.85 $112.04
9579 MXOCLAVICt£-RIOHT Contract Level 3 41-9579 101.85 $112.04
9580 MXC-ELBOW-LEFT-3-VlEWS Contract Level 3 41-9580 105.75 $116.33
9561 MXC-ELBOW-RIGHT-3-VIEWS Contract Level 3 41-9581 105.76 $116.33
9584 MXC-FACIAL-BONES-3-TC>4-VIEWS Contract Level 3 41-9584 108.75 $119.63
9585 MXC-FEMUR-LEFT-2-VIEWS Contract Level 3 41-9585 120.40 $132.44

9586 MXC>f EMUR-RIGHT-2-VlEWS Contract Level 3 41-9686 120.40 $132.44
9567 MXC-RNG£R(S)-L£FT-MIN-2-VIEWS Contract Level 3 41-9587 . . . 100.90 $110.99
9588MXC-RNGER($)-RIGHT-MiN-2-VIEWS Contract Level 3 41-9588 100.90 $110.99
9589 MXC-FOOT-LEPT-3-VIEWS Contract Level 3 41-9589 105.75 $116.33
9590 MXC-F00T-RK3KT-3-VIEV\/S Contract Level 3 41-9590 105.75 $116.33
9591 MXC-FOREARM-LEFT-2-VIEWS Contract Level 3 41-9591 105.75 $116.33
9592 MXC-FOREARM-RjGHT-2-VIEWS Contract Level 3 41-9592 105.75 $118.33
9593 MXC-GENITAUA-PENIS Contract Level 3 41-9593 90.00 $99.00
9596 MXC-HAND-3-VlEWS-LEFT Contract Levd 3 41-9596 100.90 $110.99

9597 MXC-HAND-3-VIEWS-RIGHT Contract Level 3 41-9597 100.90 $110.09
9598MXC-HtP-LEFr-2-VIEWS4iiilNIMUM Contract Level 3 41-9598 98.15 $107.67
9599MXC-HIP-RIGHT-2-VIEW8-MINIMUM Cont/BCt Level 3 41-9599 98.15 $107.97
9600MXC-HUMERUS-LEFT-2-VIEWS-MINIMUM Contract Level 3 41-9600 112.55 $123.81
9601 MXC-H(JMERUS-RIGHT-2-VIEWS-MINiMUM Contract Level 3 41-9601 112.55. $123.81

9604 MXC-KNEE-1-TO-2-VIEWS4£FT Contract Level 3 41-9604 100.90 $110.99
9605.MXC-KNEE-1-TO-2-ViEWS-RIGHT Contract Level 3 41-9605 100.60 $110.99
9606 MXC-KNEE-3-VJEWS-LEFT Contract Level 3 41-9806 110.65 $121.72
9807 MXC-KNEE.3-VIEWS-R1GHT Contract Level 3 41-8807 110.65 $121.72
9608MXC-KNEE-4-OR-MORE-VIEWS-LEFT Contract Level 3 41-9808 112.55 $123.81
6609MXC-KNEE-4-OR-MORE-V)EWS-RlGHT Contract Level 3 41-9609 112.55 $123.81
9610MXC-MAND1BLE-4-VIEW&4)^INIMUM Contract Level 3 41-9610 113.40 $124.74
9611 MXC-MASTOiOS-COMPLETE Contract Level 3 41-9611 127.10 $139.81
9612 MXC-NASAL-BOt^S ^ Contract Level 3 41-9612 98.90 $108.79
9614 MXC-ORBrrS-4-VIEWS.MINIMUM Contract Level 3 41-9614 105.75 $116.33
9615MXC-OS-CALC1S-HEEL-LEFT Contract Level 3 41-9815 96.95 $108.65
9616 MXC-OS-CALCIS-HEEL-R)OHT Contract Level 3 41-9616 96.95 $106.65
9617 MXC-PATELLA-LEFT Contract Level 3 41-9617 101.85 $112.04
9618 MXC-PATELLA-RIGHT Contract Level 3 41-9618 101.85 $112.04
9619MXC-PELVIS-1-TO-2-VIEWS Contract Level 3 41-9619 100.15 $110.17
9620 MXC-PELVIS-AP-W/UNI-HIP Contract Level 3 41-9620 112.45 $123.70
9622 MXC-RIBS-BILATERAL^PA-CHEST Contract Level 3 41-9622 145.65 $160.22
9623 MXC-RIBS-LEFT4-PA-CHEST Contract Level s 41-9623 134.90 5148.39
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Exhibit B>1 Fee Schedule

9624 MXC-RIBS^GHT-fPA-CHEST Contract Level 3

9625 MXG^CROILlAC(Si)JOINTS Contract Level 3
9626 MXC.SACRUM-AND-COCCYX-2-VIEW-MiN Contract Level 3

9627 MXC-SC-JOINTIS) Contract Level 3
9628 MXC-SCAPULA-LEFT Contract Level 3

9629 MXOSCAPULA-RIGHT Contract Level 3

9630 MXOSHOULDER-AC-JOINTS-BILAT Contract Level 3

9631 MXC-SHOULOER-LEFT Contract Level 3

9632 MXC-SHOULOER-RIGHT Contract Level 3

9633 MXC>SINUSES4-VIEWS4^INIMUM Contract Level 3
0635 MXC-SKULL-LESS-'mAN-4-VtEWS Contrsct Level 3

9636 MXC-SKULL^VIEWS-MINIMUM Contract Level 3
9636 MXC-SPINE-CERV-W/FLEX-AND/OR-EXT Contract Level 3
9639 PlAXC-SPlNE-CERVICAL-1-VIEW Contract Level 3
9641 MXC-SPINE-CERVICAL-2-TO-3-VIEWS Contract Level 3

9642 MXC-SPIN E-CERVICAL-4-VIEWS Contract Level 3

9643 MXC-NECK/SOFT-TISSUE Contract Level 3

9644 MXC-SPINE-LUMBAR-1.VIEW Contract Level 3

9645 MXC-SPINE-LUMBAR-2-TO-3'VIEVVS Contract Level 3

9646 MXC-^PINE-LUMBAR-4-VIEWS4WllNIMUM Contract Level 3

9648 MXC>SPINE-TH0RACIC-2-VIEWS Contract Level 3

9649 MXC-SPINE-THORACIC-1-VIEW Contract Level 3
9650 MXC-SPINE-THORACIC-AP^LAT-W/OBL Contract Level 3

9651 MXC-STERNUM Contract Level 3

9652 MXC-TEMPOROMANDIBULAR-JOINTS Contract Level 3
9653 MXC-HB/FIB-LOWER-LEGIEFT Contract Level 3

9654 MXC.TlB/nB4.0WER.LEG-RIGHT Contract Level 3
9655 MXC-TOES-FOOT-LEFT Contract Level 3

9656 MXC-TOES-FOOT-RIQHT Contract Level 3

9659 MXC-WRIST-LEFT*3-VIEWS4l(1iNIMUM Contract Level 3
9660 MXC-WRIST-RIGHT-3>VIEWS-MINIMUM Contract Uvel 3

9661 MXC-WRIST-LEFT-WITH^VICULAR Contract Level 3
9562 MXC-WRIST-RIGHT'WITH-NAVICULAR Contract Level 3

M71 MXOCHEST-DECUB-LT Contract Level 3

9672 MXC-SPINE'LUM5AR-FLEX'^EXT-4V1EW Contract Level 3

41*9624 134.90 $148.39

41-9625 113.00 $124.30

41-9626 113.80 $125.18

41-9627 108.30 $119.13
41-9626 iOS.75 $116.33
41-9629 105.75 $118.33
41-9630 120.00 $132.00
41-9831 107.80 $118.58

41-9832 107.80 $118.56

41-9833 117.00 $128.70

41-9835 100.05 $110.06

41-^ 105.65 $116.22
41-9638 -99.76 $109.73

41-9639 96.75 $106.43

41-9641 105.75 $116.33
41-9642 119.35 $131.29

41-9643 105.75 $116.33

41-9344 101.85 $112.04
41-9845 115.40 $126.94

41-9646 134.90 $148.39

41-8646 124.65 $137.12

41-9649 101.65 $112.04
41-9650 133.85 $147.24
41-9651 107.80 $118.58
41-9652 108.30 $119.13
41-9653 11Z55 $123.81
41-9654 123.10 $135.41
41-9655 105.75 $116.33

41-9656 105.76 $116.33

41-9659 100.90 $110.99

41-9660 100.90 $110.99
41-9681 108.75 $119.63

41-9682 10a75 $119.63

41-9671 101.75 $111.63

41-9672 116.40 $126.94

Concord Hospital. Inc. Exhibit B-1 Fee Schedule
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS I

Contractors Obligations; The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
Information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

A. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determinatiori. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department.regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may temiinate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses Incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse Items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. In which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for ail funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for sen/ices
provided to any individual who Is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS; MAINTENANCE; RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

6. IVIaintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Contract, and ail
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, latx>r time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eliglbilrty (Including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records; Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year, it is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit.Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to aii reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: Ail information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the perfonnance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract: and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibil C - Special Provisions Coniraclor initials
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Exhibit C

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials pr^ared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchaseid under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS v^II retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any govemmental license or
permit shall be requir^ for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if It has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profrt organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http:/Avww.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and.protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to

. subcontracting, the Contractor^ shall evaluate the sutxiontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the sutxontractor's perforrnance is not adequate. Sulxontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a v/ritten agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings;

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which Is

entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the docurnent submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determine by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and •
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C > special Provisions Contractor Initials
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows;

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, terminatloh or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
Immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be-required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) Identified in block 1.'6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds.are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement,'including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transltioned to having services delivered by another entKy
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
at)out the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in Its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Division reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to four (4) additional years, subject to
the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Wor1<place Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certiHes that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged In the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including posrtion title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Inilials
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who Is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2,1.3,1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site{s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are net identified here.

Contractor Name:

Date ' f 5^ SfOAy\A10me

Title: cfo
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name;

sm it
Date

L
me

Title:

Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibiiity Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below..

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shali submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible." "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant." "person." "primary covered transaction," "principal." "proposal," and
'voluntarily excluded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not-knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded'
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that It will include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, ineliglbility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in ail solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered transaction that It is not del>arred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of Its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shali be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor Initials
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infonnatlon of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the t)est of Its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (i)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined jn 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief that it and Its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, ineiigibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in ail solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Dal? ^
ki
to

Titie:
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d} which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activKy);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination; .

: .28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faKh-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Proigram for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G ■
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

Date ^ Name:
Title: ^
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CERTiFiCATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Chiidren Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor faciiity owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatrnent. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1". By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Chiidren Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

//8 0 -
Date ' , Nam^: SctM

Title:
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HEALTH iNSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record sef
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaoreoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning.as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501:

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment.Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit! Contractor initials
Health Insurance Portability Act
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart 0, and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not othenwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of th'iB Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate •
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObtlQations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. .The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identlfication;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or.to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use of have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 Exhibitl Contractor Initials
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^ pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
^ business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions {P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment arid incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
- such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of. or.accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests.. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, In its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed..

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) In its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.620, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knovi4edge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a tlmeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure Is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is ,
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
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Seoreaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services CtAUcA hisp'i-Ul
The State

.hniiiT~y

Name of the ContraAor

L)-
tghature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

UfCi Sliibf'neH-^
Name of Authorized Representative

C£o - n:>hh
Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

3/2014 Exhibit I
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountabiiity and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more, if the
initial award is beiOw $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award,
in accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAiCS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique Identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant.recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certificaition:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

Date e:Na

Tte: tfo

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federai Funding Contractor initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance I
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FORMA

As the Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: " 3^

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer.to #2 above is YES, please answer the following;

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO tX YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your busiriess or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUAXHS/110713

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable information,
whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health Information, " Breach"
shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services
- of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state or
federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to Protected
Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial Information
(PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card
Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives DHHS
data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and
.  the regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of a
system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

consent, incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is not
designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by
means of the State, to transmit] will be considered an open network and not
adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, PHI or confidential
DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C: 19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is
linked or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's
maiden name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable
Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the
United States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R.
§ 160.103. ■

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed
or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American
National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information. •

I. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information

except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not

V4, Last update 2.07.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials _
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 2 of 9 Date.

.iM.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS information Security Requirements

use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a subpoena,
etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or
object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives of
DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks or
portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure.
.SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Confidential
Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified
ground mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.
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7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will
be transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-h6ur auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data yia wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place
to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End Users
in support of protecting Department confidential information. ,

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2
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5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-

■ hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malwarc utilities. The environment, as a
whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the
hosting Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in
accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines for
Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and'Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:
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1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

<

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media
used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate aiithentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
delect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match those
for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Department syslem(s). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access
being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request tp complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and

•  Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
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scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New
Hampshire or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States
unless prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department. -

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach^ promptly take measures to prevent
future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from the breach,
including buf not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and costs
associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, but
not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS Privacy
Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts
160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health information
and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and

xscope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and additional email
addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two (2) hours of the time
that the Contractor leams of its occurrence. This includes a confidential information

breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any
State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to perform
their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:
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a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section iV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, Pi, or PPI
are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being

sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to receive
such information.

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks. card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all limes when in transit, at rest, or when stored
on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and disclosed
using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.
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The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and .
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with" all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation

• measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact program and policy:

(Insert Office or Program Name)
(Insert Title)
DHHS-Contracts@dhhs.nh.gov

" B. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:

DHHSInformationSecuriiyOfficc@dhhs.nh.gov

I

E. • DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov
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